I M
BE112? 01 CHARGES, ipSFHRS ALID
EVILEUCE ILT CASE LIOSES PRIKDEAU, SUPER-

IEPEiIIDEUT CARLISLE SCHOOL, PA.,

Oil ORI GLIAL REPORT OP IIISPECTOR LniiiEii.



ceeded to Carlisle School, Pa. and made an iInvestigatio
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BRIEF OF CHARGES

VS.
MOSES FRIEDMAU, SUPERIHTEHDEHT,
CARLISLE (PA) School .

Inspector E. B. Linnen on January 19, 1914, pro-

GIel 62 Nl

IS embodied iIn a report by him made on February 24,

from,which charges against Superintendent Moses

Friedman were formulated and sent to,him on the 3rd day

of March 1914. Superintendent Friedman was suspended on

The charges against Superintendent Friedman are taken

up in the following order:

1.

1. That you knowingly and with intent to defraud
presented vouchers for certain transportation ex-
penses i1ncurred by you and wrongfully paid for out

of the funds of the Carlisle Athletic Association

and lead the disbursing officers of the Department

to believe that you had paid for same out of your own
private funds and that by reason of such false” repre-
sentations you were actually reimbursed from the
Government appropriations for said transportation.

Cash voucher Eo. 113, 3d quarter 1910 for expenses

of Moses Friedman, says he bought on March 3, 1910, one

ticket between Carlisle and Dew York and returned on March

5, 1910. Mileage book 125135 was used on train between

Carli

Harri

sle and Harrisburg on March 3, 1910 and between

sburg and Phuladelphia on March 3, 1910, and mileage



took 125300 was used on March 3, 1910 between Harrisburg

and Philadelphia ana on March 3, 1910 between Philadelphia
and Hew York. Returning on March 5, 1910, book 125300

was used on train between Hew York and Philadelphia, same
date between Philadelphia and Harrisburg and same date between
Harrisburg and Carlisle. These two books were bought out
of Carlisle athletic fund and used for two passengers on

the trip.

2. Said Voucher 113, 3rd quarter 1910, for travelling ex-
penses shows that on March 17, 1910, Superintendent Friedman
bought one round trip ticket Carlisle to Washington and
charged #7.18, and that he made the trip on March 17 and
returned March 18. Mileage book 125300 was used for one
passenger from Carlisle to Harrisburg; same book used from
Harrisburg to Baltimore on March 17 and same date and book
from Baltimore to Washington. Same book used March 18 from
7/ashington to Baltimore and on same date and book from
Baltimore to Harrisburg and on same date and book Harrisburg
to Carlisle. Mileage book 125300 issued March 3, 1910 to
Friedman and paid April 1, 1910 out of athletic funds.

3. Cash Voucher 118, 2nd quarter 1912, travelling expenses
of Superintendent Friedman, for #19.17 shows charge on

October 23, 1911, trip from Washington to uarlisle, #3.59;



On Ootober 22, mileage book 923285 used between Carlisle
and Harrisburg, on October 23 between Harrisburg and
Baltimore, and between Baltimore and Washington. On
October 25, 1911, same mileage book was used between
Washington and Baltimore, between Baltimore and Harrisburg
part of mileage being from book 923321, between Baltimore
and Harrisburg and between Harrisburg and Carlisle. Books
923285 and 923321 were delivered respectively to Superintendent
Friedman on October 14 and October 23 and were paid from
athletic fluids by check 2720.

4. Cash Voucher 117, 2nd quarter 1912, for travelling
expenses of Superintendent Friedman, #23.58, shows charge
September 18, 1911, fare from Carlisle to Washington, #3.59.
Mileage book 723670 was used September 18, between Harrisburg
and Baltimore and 772763 book was used for two passengers
on same date and train. Book 772763, same date used for
two passengers between Baltimore and Washington. Books
723670 and 772763 were delivered respectively on May 18,
1911 and July 31, 1911 to Superintendent Friedman and paid
for out of athletic fluids.

5. Cash voucher 142, 2nd quarter 1913, for travelling

expenses of Friedman, #14.02, shows charge Hovember 23,



1912 of 143 miles at 2 cents a mile to Government, 8§2.86,
from Carlisle to .Washington and on November 23, 1912, charge
of 2 cents a mile, 82.86, returning from Washington to
Carlisle. On November 24, 1912, book 269235 was used
between Baltimore and Washington and puch work of same

conductor shows same book used between Harrisburg and

Baltimore. Returned same book was used on November 25,
1912, between Washington and Baltimore, between Baltimore
and Harrisburg, and between Harrisburg and Carlisle.

Book 269235 delivered to Superintendent Friedman Ootober
19, 1912 and paid for out of Carlisle athletic funds by
check Ho. 3127.

A list of mileage purchased from C. V. Ry. at Carlisle
and paid for by W. H. Hiller, Treasurer, from the funds
of the athletic association from February 19, 1910 to
November 14, 1913, totals8580.00.

Inspector states that the agents of the C. V. Ry. Co.
at Carlisle who for many years have been in the employ of
this railroad company at Carlisle informed him that Super-
intendent Friedman has never paid until the date of his
interview, for any mileage or railroad transportation

through their office.



In a supplemental report, the Inspector refers to cash
voucher 179, 3rd quarter 1911, for transportation for himself,
Superintendent Friedman charged 828.43 for trip from Carlisle
to Lawrence, Kansas to the Government when the account of
the Carlisle Athletic Association shows that said amount of
8§28.43 was also paid him hy the Athletic Association.

S. J. Uori, the clerk who prepared these vouchers, says
they were prepared hy him under the direct instructions
and under the directions as to the method hy M. Friedman
and the accounts were made hy him as was directed hy Super-
intendent Friedman.

W. H. Miller, financial clerk, before Congressional
Committee, stated he had checked up mileage hooks, govern-
ment transportation and athletic accounts and found same
as set out.

Answer of Superintendent Friedman, denies that he
ever knowingly used mileage purchased hy the Athletic
Association and delivered to him, for Department business
or charged it in his accounts; that he frequently bought
mileage out of his own private funds, had same iIn his pocket
with Athletic Association hooks and usually on his trips
to Washington was accompanied hy Mrs. Friedman, occasionally

hy a friend, guest of the school and for her or them, used



Athletic Association mileage hook; that on trips to Mohawk,
Pratt Institute and other trade institutions, Mrs. Friedman
and guests accompanied him and the athletic mileage was used
for them and he thinks Inspector confused this use with his
personal accounts; that he used his own money when charged
for and was entitled to reimbursement therefor; that on

one or two acoasions he charged this per diem allowance

to and obtained payment from the Association and on occasions
of this kind usually was accompanied by Mrs. “jrriedman or
guests of the school; that his per diem allowance never
covered his actual and legitimate expenses; that he spent
more than $800 on a trip, accompanied by Mrs. Friedman in
1910, commencing December 1910 of about six weeks through
sohools and reservations of Kansas, Oklahoma, Hew Mexico,
Arizona and California to meet retxirned pupils, learn
conditions for benefit of Carlisle; that half the expense

of #800 was paid by the Government and half by the Association;
that i1n making up his expense acoount he made a budget of it,
handed 1t to his clerk with directions to put all Government
items in his Government account; that he included iIn this

account all R. R. tickets from California to Carlisle which

latter had In fact been paid for by the Association; that



1t was not good bookkeeping to include this i1tem but the
expense account was exactly what he was entitled to and

the account was audited and accepted by the Government;

that 1f this 1tem had not been included iIn the Government
expense account it would have been covered in his general
account with the Association as actual expenditures of money

on the trip; that he does not find anything for this trip
charged to the Association, but the railroad tickets returning;
that a supplementary expense account should have been presented
to the Association for reimbursement as Lira Friedman®s presence
on the trip, her active work for the school and the procedure
of her predecessor clearly entitled him to a refund; that he
received nothing personally but was actually out of pocket

several hundred dollars; that he has personally handled and

disbursed nearly a million and a half of dollars; that the
Inspector could find nothing wrong In his accounts and has only
been able to raise a presumption of fraud or a questionable
exception to his accounts involving less than two mileage books
ahd travelling expense accounts of a few dollars, which he
thinks i1s highly creditable and demonstrates his honesty and

integrity in handling Government money.



Charge 2. NEGLECT OP DUTY.

The Inspector says that there has "been a lack of
proper interest and prompt managementin practically every
department of the school, a lack of iIndustrial interest in
the student body for the material welfare; that there has
been no human side exhibited by the Superintendent and his
relations have been unfriendly and unsympathetic in his con-
duct toward the pupils; that the pupils could not go to him
with their grievances and receive sympathy and kindly advice;
that this undesirable condition was such that 276 boys signed
ana presented a petition to Representative Rupley requesting

an investigation.

Charge 2. Specification 1

That you have failed to teach the student body the

arts of agriculture iIn gardening and farming and

dairying and poultry raising.

The Inspector says that the school has two farms, of
160 and 110 acres; with a garden of six or seven acres;
that William Gray, one of the farmers, has been with the
sohool for about 20 years and has charge of one farm on
which 48 acres are in wheat, 28 acres in corn, 21 acres
in oats and 9-1/2 acres in potatoes, on which 973 bushels

of wheat were raised and sold, com and oats were used or on

hand, about 1000 bushels of potatoes were raised of which



120 bushels were kept for seed; that he raised 195

chickens with 90 on hand, having killed 160 for Christmas
dinner; that he worked four horses and four mules; that

he now has a detail of two boys i1n the morning and one 1in

the afternoon; that in the summer time he needs nine to

12 boys especially at harvest time but is handicapped as

he 1s not given boys enough and those sent are changed so
often that they don"t have an opportunity to learn anything;
that usually boys are sent who have been failures in the shops
and they are sent to the farm to work in the nature of a
punishment; that not enough iInterest is taken in farming;
that 1t i1s a secondary consideration; that he(the farmer)
could teach a large number of boys improved methods of
farming and instruct then i1f he had a proper detail, but that
they will not send them to him.

The other farm contains about 110 acres, in charge of
idre Ballard, a recent arrival, after all crops except a few
potatoes were harvested; that at the present time there are
113 hogs and pigs, 51 of which are small, 46 are shoats,
and since October, 97 hogs have been sold; that four boys
have been detailed to this farm for each half day. On this

farm, com, wheat, alfalfa, tomatoes, and a few potatoes



have been grown; that he has never had any iInstructions
from Superintendent Friedman regarding the farm, hut was
advised hy Kensler that he was to run the farm and do
what he considered best. There are 150. tons of silo on
the farm, on which place the dairyman lives. Dairying
Ryan complains of Friedman®s treatment of him.

George Abrams, the florist, has been employed for
fifteen months past, has 6 acres i1n garden; works five or
siz boys each half day, could work more to advantage, but
in summer when he wants them can"t get them as they are all
out working; has to get girls to pick pease and beans;
considers that a larger garden by ten times is needed which
could furnish everything in the vegetable line for the
table, besides furnishing instruction for a large number
of boys and easily could use from 30 to 50 in the cultiva-

tion of small fruit, apples, etc., and says In summer does
not have a sufficient detail of boys to do the work on the
grounds 1In a proper manner.

Inspector says no instruction in agriculture is
given now, as the plan was abandoned two or three years
ago. Most of the boys have home allotments and will have
to depond on them when they go back to the reservation and

therefore should be given systematic instruction iIn dairying,

10 .



agriculture, stock raising, and similar pursuits.
Dr. Hoble before the Senate Committee (427) said 1In
answer to a statement hy Senator Lane that;
here was an i1nstitution with 600 or 700 children,
a farm of 300 or 400 acro3 and i1t does not raise

enough potatoes to keep them - only a thousand

?USQFIS for 700 people and raising wheat on the
and,

that no one who does that can teach farming to any one,
said, "they do not teach farming from what you say."

Mr. Gray, farmer, and Mr. Ballard, farmer, testified before
the Committee along the above lines In regard to the non-
effectiveness of the agricultural training and results.
Superintendent Friedman answers this specification by
denying that he has failed and asserts that he has been both
aggressive and mindful of the duty in this respect, and has
made a distinct advance iIn these lines; that farming has
been dewioped, intensified, and improved; that daiiying has
been made more ffective by building a new barn, additions

to stock, the erection of a milk house, equipment of the
establishment with stock and machinery; that gardening has
been given new impetus by building additional hot houses,
reclamation by students of a furtile piece of land formerly
a swamp; that poultry raising has been encouraged on one of

the farms i1n the simple practical way best for farms by

11 -



small flocks and good “creeds; that elaborate steam
heated poultry house which was run at a loss has been
pulled down and land cultivated; that a model piggery
has been established and excellent results obtained;
that regular instruction in agriculture is given, as
well as i1n horticulture, etc. That 5 years ago he had
built an addition on the school building to afford the-
oretical i1nstruction by a Teacher of Agriculture, that
the position became vacant, and after a years delay
trying to find the right man the place was abolished--
he files Office correspondence--the position was rec-
ommended for abolishment by the Superintendent on the
grounds that the right man could not be obtained for
800. and the school can"t pay more— that sufficient
instruction is afforded by the Outing System, in the
class room, and on their own larms; that regular iIn-
struction in agriculture and nature study is provided
in the academic course which he prepared six years ago,
and i1s given in the class rooms, after which the pupils
go to the vegetable garden to put the theoretical i1ueas
into practices; that he has repeatedly urged the Office
as to the need of filling the position of Teacher of

Agriculture; theoretical instruction in the school 1is

given and practical training by two farmers and one

florist; the absence of a Teacher of Agriculture is

-12-



not unusual as most of the Schools are without such an
instructor; that every student receives a splended train-
ing In agriculture through the Outing System and the
girls learn the duties of a farmers wife; that 350 toys
received such beneficial training on an average each
year; has encouraged dairying in a practical way and
good results were obtained until the Indian Office sent
him W. J. Ryan who after a thorough trial was found
-to be Incompetent, which was vouched for by the State
Dairy Expert after an examination; that any failure

in the dairy department iIs due to the failure of the
Department to receilve an incompetent dairyman; that

for a long period of time he has had the service as

the school of Geo. A. Billings farm expert of U. S.
Department of Agriculture, who visited the school ob-
tained and carried out improvements in all departments
of agriculture. He fTiles exhibits of correspondence,
orders, etc. regard subject matter of his answer. Also
correspondence etc. iIn 1909-12 with Agricultural De-
partment Expert. Files letter addressed to Misses
Sudy and Denny 5-7-13 telling them to give the furnish-
ing of proper detail to both dairyman and farmer their

personal attention, and copy of letter of 11-18-13 to

McHean, Descip. 2 Denny, Asst. Discip. saying that

-13-



there was some difficulty about details to the farms
and they were directed to get together and make a de-
finite adjustment.

Specification 2. Charge 1l.

That you have not properly supervised

the various iIndustrial and trades De-

partment of the school, failing to de-

tail the student boys to the various

shops and i1ndustries for a time suffi-

cient to enable them to learn the trades

and i1ndustries and that you permitted

these details to be made by the disci-

plinarian without regard to the desires

of qualifications of the students and

against their best iInterests.

Mr. Gordum one of the two carpenters has been
at Carlisle for about 30 years, and that instead of him-
self and the other regular carpenter constructing the
buildings with the Indian boys working and learning that
practically all the work in new buildings and much of
the repairs were done by outside carpenters, that most
of the old buildings were constructed by him; that the
detail of boys i1s not sufficiently long or individually
continuous for a sufficient time to teach the boys the
trade, and that their only instruction consists of shop
work, making furniture, sa3h doors, etc;

Carpenter John Herr has been employed at Car-

lisle for about two7years, having had charge of carpen-

-14-



try work -under the present and two preceding Superinten-
dents; that his detail now i1s: 41 hoys— 19 in forenoon
and SO in the afternoon, that it takes about three years
working on the half day system to teach a trade, that
many of them are sent out on details in the summer and
some of them are put on farm when they return, that they
should be i1n the shops In the summer when building is
being done; that the new buildings were constructed by
outsiders, and that the athletic building was built by
contract; that the carpenters and bos™s do only repair
work and little work, but that thousands of dollars are
paid to outsiders for work which they could and should
do; when the boys are needed In the shops they are gone;
last summer had only a detail of 6 boys when we needed
them most; that they make furniture, tables, etc. In the
shops; that Superintendent grants special privileges but
shop men get none; that other employes have quarters,
light and fuel, but none of the tradesmen have; the per-
centage of boys who learn a trade is small as the Super-
intendent takes no interest in the pupils ordinarily,
leaving the details to the disciplinarian.

C. H. Carne, Painter, thirteen years at the

school; now has a detail of 12 boys half a day, of which

-15-



only 3 have been "with him 2 j"-ears; they generally stay
only one season when a boy ought to stay 3 or 4 years

to learn the trade. Makes some complaint as to details,
method, time of making them carpenters; that Superinten-
dent takes no interest iIn them nor gives them an oppor-
tunity to learn a trade.

K. Honnese, Tailor, twelve years at School;
during winter months has a detail of 15 boys on an aver-
age of 7 to 9 each 1/2 day; as a rule only 3 or 4 boys
stay long enough to learn a trade. Corroborates wit-
nesses named as to details, etc. Specifically says that
a boy named Gilbert who has been at the school 5 years
was just detailed to him, but will go home when his term
expires; takes boys at least 3 years to learn trade, that
he could now work 20 or more boys on a shift; that no one
looks after the boys clothing and good clothing s con-
demned and sold as rags.

Robert E. George, Tinner, three years at the
school, does not have quarters given him, lives down
town and pays car fare, rent, etc. out of $600. sllary;
that Superintendent says has no quarters for industrial
tradesmen, yet quarters are provided for Coach Warner—
not an employe. His details consist of 12 boys large

and 4 small- seven iIn forenoon and nine in the afternoon.
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1ai& Complaint as to changing details, etc. and boys
should remain for 3 years at least.

Horton L. Lan - Carriage Maker, 9 years at
the school- $800 salary says Superintendent does not
cooperate with the employes, that he trill not stand by
what he says; has no quarters; makes same complaint about
change details as other industrial employes.

Vv William C. Shambaugh, Blacksmith, $800., has
13 boys detailed to him every 1/S day-— Same complaint
as to short and changing time of details and that Super-
intendent has no iInterest in the boys, their details or
learning a trade; that once Superintendent took out of
his salary the time he had on leave which was due him,
and once refused leave for him to attend his sister"s
funeral; that when quarters were availed his request was
refused.

Raymond Renneker, Baker, turns out about 6200
loaves of bread in a week, using about 5 barrels of flour;-
Since October has had 10 boys detailed to him, 5 m the
forenoon and 5 i1n the afternoon; Some of the coys In ns
detail can do the baking.

Vv John Baltz, Shoemaker, has a detail of 9 boys

each 1/2 day, and some have been with him six or seven

-17-



months 1n the past two years; does repair work on shoes
and on harnesses since the harness shop was abandoned;
says he could do more work with a larger detail, and
make better shoes than those purchased for the pupils;
that the disciplinarian makes the details and Superin-
tendent shows no interest.

Harry E. Lamason, Mason, has a detail of 18
or 20 boys, and again has none. Details changed so
often can not teach them the trade or give them instruc-
tion, could handle 50 boys, Superintendent takes no in-
terest i1n the boys.

Mss Ella Albert, Laundress, IS years at Car-
lisle, has two assistants, has detail of 20 girls each
half day with 5 boys, discipline of girls is good and
that same complaint has been made against the Superin-
tendent. Inspector says the laundry is one of the best
conducted places at he school.

Harry E . ¥eber, Engineer, 21 years at Car-
lisle, salary $1100.00, that his detail runs from 9
to 14 boys each half day, detail at times is unsatis-
factory; 2 boys are detailed at night as firemen; that
it is hard to get materials, and Superintendent iIgnores

him. Superintendent takes no interest in the boys; has

-18-



generally the same detail and has had some toys two and
three years; that the school and industrial teaching 1is
secondary to foot ball.

Arthur G. Brown, Printer, printing office ex-
ceptionally well conducted, has detail of 20 boys in
forenoon and 21 in afternoon at present. Fourteen have
been 1n the Office for 2 or 3 years, and 25 Is a new
detail, that while Disciplinarian makes the detail he
insists that same boys be sent, and is generally sup-
ported; that Superintendent seems to take very little
interest in the boys although he has sent some as outing
printers.

These persons testified before the Committee.

The Inspector says that practically i1t is the
opinion of all employes engaged in Industrial work that
Superintendent Friedman has paid no attention to the
trades or their proper correllation with the aims of the
school, which is shown by the small percentage of the
boys who are proficient in the trades.

The Inspector quotes from the annual Kept, of
Carlisle for 1912 in which 1t is said "that the Indian
boy and girl can obtain here such knowledge of the use-

ful industries, etc.”" and that "in all forms of con-
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struction work in building, In construction, carpentery,
plastering, blacksmithing, machine work, shoemaking,
bricklaying, painting, the Indians have no difficulty
in making good."

He quotes further a statement from the report
that "during the year 976 were placed at work at their
trades, and two of the girls were training as nurses,"
and says that practically all these pupils were working
on the farms as laborers, the girls iIn kitchins as hired

help.

Friedman®s Answer.

Denies the allegations in this specification,
and says he personally has inspected the i1naustrial De-
partment almost daily and often both fore and after noons,
and submits orders and instructions which he issued to
vocational departments or testifying to his deep and ac-
tive interests iIn this Important work; that he has com-
pletely reorganized all these departments so as to give
effective iInstruction iIn trades of a most useful and prac-
tical character; that i1t has received the encomium of all

department officials who have visited the school and by

. 20.



outsiders as well; shops are equipped with individual
work Denches and where feasible with individual sets of
tools, that he has prepared complete courses of Instruc-
tion, and the entire shop building has been made into
the very best equipped and arranged shop building in

the service; a new plumbing and machine shop has been
installed and a model printing office built and equipped,
that a large part of the new building and practically
all the repairs were done by student apprentices; that
Supervisor Charles bears testimony to the efficiency

of the shops; that he denies any neglect on his part

for students improperly detailed to trades said indus-
trial departments, assert his vigilance as shown by
copies of orders and correspondence in relation thereto
which are filed with the answer; that any failure in this
respect Is due to disobedience of orders by the disciplin-
arian; that a large amount of routine work must be kept
up by pupils and to do this properly the students must
be properly detailed and all disciplinarians and matrons
have been ordered to so arrange them as to interfere
least with the trades; each boy is allowed to select

his trade when he arrives at the school; that when dis-

satisfied they are free to come to him about it; that

—El-



lie has gradually built up the outing system so that the

boys i1n carpentry, printing, blacksmithing, etc. and

gives a list of such pupils for 1913 in which 351 are credited
to agriculture, 304 to household arts, 14 painters, 14

blacksmiths, and from 1 to 8 to other trades.

Specification 3 - Charge I1.

That you failed to provide a suffi-

cient food supply, particularly

break, vegetables, pork, milk, eggs,

butter, etc. for the students at

the school and a sufficient number

of knives and spoons and adequate

table ware for theilr use.

The Inspector says he visited the dining room
at least 15 times during his stay at Carlisle, and noticed
on his first visit an -insufficient food supply, that many
complained they did not get enough to eat, that at least
400 made the same complaint at various times; that pupils
were given one slice of bread, about 5/8 of an ounce of
oatmeal without milk or sugar, a cup of weak coffee of an
inferior grade, colored with a little milk and an iInsuf-
ficient quantit:/ of sugar; for breakfast generally beef
was served, which had been cooked in a steam kettle; for
dinner bread and gravy, prunes, water, and sometimes a lit-

tle meat; for supper tea, gravy, bread; that was practi-

cally the ration served when he first went to Carlisle
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except that they had an unsufficient supply of syrup
twice a week, ginger bread once a week and pie on Sun-
day; that after his arrival more bread was baked so

that they could have a second helping, some rice and
beans, potatoes twice a week, butter once a week and
when syrup was served twice a week one little pitcher
would be placed on each table for ten persons, and was
just enough for five or six pupils and the balance went
without. There were practically no vegetables, no milk
or eggs, no cookies or doughnuts, and butter once a week.
On many of the tables when he arrived there were no spoons,
a lack of 4 to 5 knives out of ten places set, 5 or 6 cups
for ten, and some would have to wait for the knife until
his neighbor was through with i1t so he could cut bread
or meat; many were drinking from the same cup, napkins
furnished once or twice a week but seldom used. No at-
tempt made to teach pupils table manners, that hundreds
of the pupils told him they had gone away from the table
hungry and purchased pies, etc. from the bakery wagon.
Fourteen pupils testified to the Committee to the condi-
tions here set out. These represented the student body

in their complaints.
All this shortage caused by only six acres

in a garden and the green stuff was summer vegetables
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when most of the pupils were away. Many pigs were raised
at the school and since October, 1912, 97 hogs had been
sold and the proceeds passed to Glass IV funds, but not
used for the table. Ho fruit was raised or served, no
soup was on the table, and the soup stock was thrown away.
Soup was not used because of a lack of soup bowls.

The Assistant Oook, Mr. Richey, admitted that
the pupils often complained that they did not have enough
to eat— and were not getting enough bread.

The dining room matron, Mrs. Zeamer, admitted
that the children often complained that they did not get
enough to eat, not enough bread many times, not enough
fruit, that '‘gravy did not reach” and not enough meat;
that she could not get enough table ware, that she be-
lieved 1t was the cause of bad discipline in the dining
room, and that frequently some of the larger boys would
go to a store to get their meals; That they had not had
Easter Eggs for past 2 years, and never got eggs, ham,
bacon, cookies or doughnuts; that they bought lots of
food from the bakery because they were hungry.

The Superintendent rarely ever visits the din-

ing room.
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Superintendent. Friedmans Answer.

Denies that the pupils are inruffioiently fur-
nished with food, that the supply has "been of a quantity
larger than provided by the Department allowance iIn the
ration table, and has been supplemented by garden products,
and gives a statement from the quarter master; that the
complaint usually comes about food each year after the
boot ball season by a few of the athletes who have been
living on the special diet provided out of the Athletic
fund at special training tables with a private cook,
and extra articles only furnished the athletic squad and
purchased out of the athletic fund; that this is the first
time the complaint has taken on the appearance of a well
worked up affair, that certain boys given to complaining
were leaders iIn 1t, and a thorough open iInvestigation
would show that they were inspired by certain employes;
that the quarter masters statement shows that the allow-
ance has exceeded the regular ration table, and that
there is a good variety of food, that butter, milk, eggs
are furnished, and he files a statement from the quarter
master dining room matron and cook to show that the food
iIs sufficient; that he has undoubtedly one of the best

cooks in the service; that no fair minded man can inves-
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tigate the food question, Judge i1t by the regulations
and the facts to give 1t approval.

Quartermaster Kuesler says that he has never
heard a complaint about the food supply except when the
training tables close, that the flour issue for bread
exceeds the allowance which 1s a special table allowed
bjr the Office and exceeds the table of 1904, that on an
inventory before making a weekly issue he finds the kit-
chen has a surplus often of beans, rice, and hominy;
that from 100 to 175 hogs are fed from the leavings of
the tables, that he has made i1t his duty to ask the cook
why beans, rice, etc. were not all used, and he said we
cooked a plenty; that 100 pounds of butter weekly and
milk from 40 to 60 gallons daily, 1is output and all is-
sued; eggs furnished hospital; have always had sufficient
table ware but breakage is large; that from the bakery
they have besides bread, corn bread, rolls, cakes and
pies; veal during the year, in addition to the beef
from 30 to 40 calves and pork several times, that quan-
tity and variety of food for children®s tables not less
than they have had for 20 years; that during Friedman®s
administration from 1911 to 1912 school received 300

new mattresses; that one cause of the mattresses pack-
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ing down is the bed itself, being solid -without springs
and made specially to benefit the health of the pupils,
he -was iInformed; that he thinks i1t a sad reflection on
one -who for twenty-two years has 1In any -way tried to
please students, -who has done the best he knows how
both for students and the government to have fault
found against him In Ms last days.

Ohas. G. Il.latthens Student®s cock says he has
held his position for 15 months, and that the students
have had plenty and that after each meal there 1iIs a
large amount of waste left over from the student®s dishes
which goes to the garbage hopper; that Superintendent
Friedman frequently came into the kitchen and showed at
all times an iInterest i1In the food and its preparation,
that the students are getting the same amount of food
now that they received before the Inspector®s visit,
they complained then but now there i1s no complaint;
that the bakery wagons and peddlers who sell cakes and
pies came here before the Inspector®s /isit, during it,
and come now; that he could have given expert and valua-
ble iInformation about the food but neither the Inspector

nor Committee asked him.
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A statement prepared apparently for the Matron
in Charge of the dining room but unsigned was filed with
Superintendent®s answer.

Specification 4, Charge 11.

That you failed to supplement the Government

rations hy vegetables which should have been

raised at the school and which would have pro-

vided food, employment and education to the

pupils.

This specification is elaborated on In the testimony
of Farmezs Gray, Ballard and Florist Abrams.

Superintendent Friedman®s answer.

Denies the charge and says the reoord of farmers
and garden show an iIncreased amount of vegetables each year
under his administration; that acting on the advice of
the farm expert from the Department of Agriculture, the old
plans were changed and the farmers cultivated two general
crops of potatoes and a vegetable garden was started under
the charge of the florist; that it is now one of the best
truck gardens in the valley; that vegetables to the valu.9
of $2,602.18 were raised; that there has been an increase
in value of vegetables from $538.00 in 1909, to $1,845.41
in 1913; that potatoes were raised as follows; 1910-776
bushels, 1911 - 378 bushels, 1912 - 661 bushels and 1913 -
2330 bushels - this 1n addition to vegetables; that these

records are shown by the farmers®and florist"s reports, and

- 38



the daily food reports, copies of -which for three months
are enclosed with specification 3; these reports are made
out hy cook, haker, and dining room matron; that before his
administration the products of the vegetable gardens were
used on the employees® tables, but now all are sent to
hospital and children®s table; that when there was a
shortage of potatoes they were bought for the school, and
that thousands of dollars worth of canned vegetables,
needed over and above those canned by the school were pur-
chased each year as well as a goodly supply of dried fruit.
George Abrams certifies that vegetables, consisting
of beans, squash, sweet potatoes, beets, 4000 head of cabbage,
10,000 ears of corn, 21700 cucumbers, 1635 head of lettuce?
66 bushels of lettuce, 763 bushels of onions, 63 bushels of
peas, 1600 peppers, 105 bushels of turnips, 14 bushels of
carrots, 388 bushels of tomatoes, 1600 bundles radishes
and 2 bushels parsley, to the value of $2684.00 was raise-j,
delivered and used by the Indian students in the dining room
and school hospital and that none of these are used by
employees.
Specification 5. Charge 11.

That you have compelled the students to sleep
upon old and unfit mattresses, which wore hard,
packed down and matted from years of use and that
you supplied each pupil but one towel a week xor
face and bathing.



The dormotories are cut up into small rooms in which
there are three or four single beds for that number of
pupils. They have no springs, but instead, iron slats
over which mattresses are placed and the majority of these
have been i1n use from 3 to 6 years and were worn down so

that they were about an inch in thickness and almost as

hard as the floor.

The Inspector says there i1s great need for 350 new

mattresses to fix these up. Some pupils complained that
they did not have enough blankets. The bed linen is changed
once a week. The pupils have only one towel a week when iIn

fact a large number of bath towels were iIn the Commissary
and could have been procured on requisition. Attention was
called to lack of neatness and cleanliness i1n the girls*
dormitory.

Superintendent Friedman®s Answer.

Say3 this i1s the first time in six years he has had

any complaint about mattresses by students or about beds;

that they were obtaine d from the warehoiise on requisition to
this Department and from the statement of the quartermaster
heretofore quoted shows that these have been obtained whenever

the supply ran out and iIn accordance with the requirements of

- 30 -



the quarters; that once a month he has for six years
examined every student®"s domicile, he was accompanied hy
the quartermaster and those i1n charge of the dormitories
and often hy the physician as well as frequently alone;
that he never heard a complaint, which, If cause existed,
he 1nvited as iInspections were never stiff or formal;
the beds have a hard bottom made of straps of iron with
no '‘give'; that mattresses were thin and purchased hy
the Indian Offioe probably because of this; that he has no
control of this purchase; that the type of bed was adopted
by the Department; that his iInstructions were to ailr the
mattresses; that he had heard students did not like soft
beds; that Vassar, Smith or Wellesley, he doesn"t recall
and soft
which, had abandoned the luxurious/mattresses which were
burned 1n favor of harder straw mattresses, and at the same
time abolished the use of butter in the dining room.
Concerning towels, he depended on those iIn charge and
ifT the students did not get enough of these, it was their
negligence; that he has shown his interest in bathing and
washing by installing new showers and bathing facilities;
has erected a modell three story toilette building adjacent

to tfte large boys®™ home, which he says is undoubtedly the
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most complete In the service; that In a letter of March
5, 1912, to the Office, he transmitted recommendations for
the i1nstallation of the Pullman Towel System, hut never had
anaiswer to 1t; that his work at Carlisle has home fruit
in an improved health condition made manifest hy the falling
off of the death rate of 21 in 1888, 18 i1n 1889, 11 in 1886,
with several hundred pupils less than now, to an average
during six years of his administration of 2 per year.
Inspector Idnnen in this connection says that Super-
intendent Friedman picked out the two years when the Apaches
were transferred to Carlisle regardless of their condition
and picked these two years to reflect on Pratt®"s administra-
tion; that he failed to state that during the following
years the death rate was very low and that some years with a
larger attendance of pupils at said school there has "been no

deaths.

Specification 6, Charge 11.

That you failed to discipline certain athletes who
were iIntoxicated and who "brought liquor on the reser-
vation, and that you yourself had liquor in your house
on the reservation and served at your table and per-
mitted liquor to he brought to the house of Bandmaster
C. M. Stauffer, Coach Glenn C. Warner and Clerk Uori
on the reservation in violation of the law.

The Inspector refers to the affidavit of Fred Bruce
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in regard to two foot-ball boys - James Thorpe and Gus Welch
drinking beer at the school; that liquor was brought there
by Assistant Quartermaster Stewart who, the Inspector says,
has been known to be drunk on the grounds and not prosecuted;
that Welch and Thorpe were not punished; that a foot-ball
boy, Williams, was drunk on the grounds and not punished.

E. K. Miller, formerly printer at Carlisle from May 1,
1908 to January 1912, on examination said that he never saw
any member of the foot-ball team drunk; that he has seen
beer wagons on the Carlisle school grounds; that they stopped
at several employees™ houses and carried crates in; that it
would be hard-, to say who they were for as several families
lived In them; never saw any go to the Superintendent®s house;
the houses i1n which the beer crates were carried were occupied
by Messrs. Kori, Stauffer and another house occupied by
Coach Warner; that he could not personally say what the
contents of the crates were; that he was at Superintendent
Friedman®s house at an entertainment where liquor was served,
but as he refused his could not tell what the dark liquor was,
but 1t looked like wine or some such liquor; never saw it
served at other houses; that there was a good deal of drunken-

ness at socials he attended; that he has seen several young
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men carried out at different times or escorted out and
taken to the guard house; that they had been drinking;
that several times at night his family was aroused hy a
number of hoys being taken to the guard house, cursing,
swearing and raising a rumpus; that he saw more drunkenness
at Carlisle the first year he was there than he had seen iIn
his seven years previously at Chilooco, where he had been
employed; that he was at Warner®s house where they served
beer once, but as he did not like i1t, he never went there
again.
Superintendent Friedman®s Answer

Denies that he"failed to discipline atheletes who were
intoxicated", when i1t came under his notice or he had iInformation
and asserts his greatest persistency in performing his duty
in suppressing liquor traffic among Indians; that he insisted
on athletes being disciplined as other students; that he
denies having liquor i1n his house except for medicinal uses,
and then only during the lifetime of his wife"s mother, who
died three years ago; that he did not permit and had no
knowledge of liquor In houses of Messrs Stauffer, Warner or Uori,

who have a reputation of temperance and sobriety; that the

only oase of liquor being brought on the grounds for improper
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purposes was that of Assistant Quartermaster, who was reported
as having 'beer iIn his room and drinking 1t in company with
Gus Welch and James Thorpe and refers to his summary action
on the affair as disclosed In a report to him by John M. Rudy,
Assistant Disciplinarian, copy of which he files. Rudy says,
both boys (Welch and Thorpe) were severely reprimanded,
and Welch who was a staff officer iIn the Cadet squadron
with the rank of private. In view of Welch"s excellent
reoord as a student of this school and the prominent part
he took In the squadron as a staff officer, | consider
the punishment sufficient.
In case of Thorpe, a private, it has been known
that he would sever his connection with the school in
a few days and a severe reprimand was considered sufficient.
The Superintendent says that the records of the federal
and local courts show a larger number of prosecutions under
his administration than was ever before; that these have been
against bootleggers and disreputable persons, as the licensed
saloons have cooperated with the school; that he has on
several occasions asked for special officers; that he has
repeatedly orally and through the"Arrow'and the'Red Lilan’,
spoken on this subject to the students; and that he has
maintained cooperative relations with the Pennsylvania Anti-
saloon league; that the last special officer at the school

told him that the campus was a military and not an Indian

reservation.
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Specification 7. Charge 11.

That you failed to maintain proper discipline at

the school as a result of your unjust treatment

of and lack of cooperation with and sympathy for

the employees and members of the student body

and a total lack of interest individually in the

welfare of the pupils.

One of the principla causes alleged is the lack of res-
pect which the Superintendent has failed to inspire in the
students and employees; that Disciplinarian MoKean says
the conditions at the school are very bad; that they jeer
at the Superintendent and call him names and have thrown old
shoes at him; that some of the boys have been wrongfully
whipped.

Mrs. A. Deitz, Indian Art Teacher, says conditions are
very bad as to discipline, morals and drinking; that many
of the boys and girls have been unjustly treated; that a new
superintendent is needed.

Harvey K. Myers, Clerk, says there is a great lack of
discipline; that pupils have no respect for Superintendent
who appears to take no real iInterest iIn their welfare; that
wrong action was taken with reference to many pupils and
names cases of Lewis Schweighman, Morris Huff, Montriville

Yuda, Sylvia Moore, Gus Welch and others; that Superintendent

Friedman told him that some of these students were mixed up
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in a movement against him; conditions were gradually getting
worse last year; that Miss Gaither was not properly supported
as matron; that many pupils do not get enough to eat;

that there is great lack of discipline and cooperation with
employees; that Superintendent does not seem to care; that
what 1s needed is a hig man for Superintendent who will get
the best out of the employees and students; that will reach
the hearts of the pupils.

Mrs. Wallace Denny, an Indian, wife of Assistant Dis-
ciplinarian Wallace Denny was educated at Carlisle and never
saw such a great lack of discipline and morals; pupils did
not respect the Superintendent.

Wallace Denny, Assistant Disciplinarian, iIn charge of
small hoys, educated at Carlisle, says that discipline iIs had
and growing worse.

Dr. Walter Rendtarff, physician since January 1st,
having been transferred from Anadarko, says he was not courteously
received hy Superintendent and was made to feel that he was
not wanted; the general health conditions were good, dis-
cipline had; had to send a girl home on account of her
condition.

John Rudy, former Assistant Disciplinarian, says he

was not supported, that pupils called Superintendent Friedman
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such names as 013 Mose', '013 Sheeny', etc.

lelson A. Simon says the Y. M. C. A. work has 3win3le3
from £69 to 28 members an3 only three or four pai3 up members;
that he keeps appointing 3ifferent employees to act but none
seem to be able to han3le the situation.

All the tra3es employees unite iIn charging lack of co-
operation with them an3 lack of sympathy with the pupils.

Miss bydia Kaup, Uormal Teacher, sai3 Superinten3ent
ha3 hin3ere3 the aca3emic work, rather than encourages the
teachers; that he 313 not use goo3 judgment an3 that scholars
receives no iIn3ivi3ual training.

Miss Lovewell, teacher, gave similar testimony concerning
lack of encouragement an3 want of Siscipline.

Miss Hattie M. McDowell testifie3 that Superinten3ent
haS not Sealt fairly with employees anS pupils; that everything
iIs Sone for show anS make gooS appearance.

Mrs. CanfielS, Seamstress, testifies that she ha3 been at
the school for 14 years anS that "conSitions are 3eplorable
as to morality anS Siscipline, the lowest now i1t has ever been,™
that SuperintenSent"s failure to cooperate with Miss Gaither,
former matron, resuiteS disastrously in sacrificing the morals
of the school and ruining the girls; that in less than a year

16 girls haS been expelled; that Superintendent was unjust
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expelling girls without cause and named Sylvia Moore as an
example; that, he turned Murtle Sullivan loose in Harrisburg
without any money and she was only eighteen years of age;
that he tells employees to get out of his office if they
do not like i1t; that she knows of one instance when Miss
Gaither, former matron, was ordered to the gymnasium, leaving
the girls quarters all alone and as a result two hoys got in
and spent the evening with the girls; that Superintendent
has sent out girls like Agnes Jacobs with the band boys,
an 1mmoral girl who was unfit to represent the school;
that girls had been mislead iIn going to pageants and visiting
cities with foot-ball and baseball teams; that one girl was
ruined in the hospital; that the boys were protected but
the girls were not.

Hay L. Mann, teacher, says that discipline i1s bad; that
some of the boys are unjustly treated, one being locked up
for writing to his parents; that pupils are allowed to go out
without passes; that the boys have hissed the Superintendent,
calling him "Old Jew”.

Miss Sweeny, teacher, says Superintendent is unjust to the
students; that pupils dislike Superintendent very muoh; that

he shows favoritism; that the morals of the school are bad;



that a few weeks ago the hoys broke into the girls quarters
again.

John Whitwell, Principal Teacher, speaks of lack of discipline
ana i1njustice of Superintendent to pupils and employees; that
athletics are the principal thing; that Stewart, a white man
and assistant quartermaster, came on the grounds drunk and
nothing was done with him; that Gus Welch and other loot-ball
boys have been drunk without being disciplined or reprimanded;
that special privileges have been granted to foot-ball boys;
that there is no proper night watchman at the school; that
corporal piinishment of pupils iIs bad; that school reports have
been falsified.

Superintendent Friedman”™ answer.

Superintendent denies and challenges the production of
testimony to support this charge from unbiassed persons and
that last summer he remained on the campus and personally

checked up the work of the teachers and others, and found

that i1mprovements could be made i1n the academic department;

that he put iInto operation some new duties which seem to have
been resented by Mr. Whitwell; that i1t must be understood
that among a large number of employees such as here there must
be some who, i1f corrected or prodded up, would feel i1njured

and 1T he had been advised of the parties making the charges
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he could expose the motive; he gives names as follows:

John Whitwell, Margaret Sweeny, lydia Kaup, Hattie McDowell,
Royal Mann, E. E. MoKean, Bertha D. Canfield, William B.

Gray, Wallace Denny, Martin 1. Law, Mrs. Rosa B. LaFlesche.

He refers to some of the town people aggrieved hy his in-
sistence and discipline, aided and abetted discharged employees
in agitation of discontent on the grounds and against him
personally and gave sympathy to students under punishment

and openly inspired such students to believe that they had
been 1lltreated; he iIs astounded at the charge that he has

no sympathy with the pupils; that he and Mrs. Friedman have
mingled frequently with the students in every and all occasions
and attended all kinds of mettings and societies, religious,
educational and social; that he has opened his house to every
student wedding; that there has been to some extent iIn the
past few months a laxity of discipline due to the i1ncompetency
of the Principal Disciplinarian McKean. He-appends a large
number of orders given to MdKean; that he has proven entirely
unfit and he (Friedman) should be held responsible for his
dereliction; that Whitwell, MoKean and a few other disloyal
employees have persistently undermined him with the students;
that without reflecting on the Indian Office or the present

acting superintendent, as a matter of comparison, that at no
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time during his imcumbency was discipline in the Carlisle
school at so low an ehh as now since his supervision;
that he i1s advised male pupils iIn large numbers are nightly-

in town, drinking, smoking and with colored women; that It

IS due to Incompetency of certain employees whom he has
criticized and who seemed to he most desireous to retain the
good graces of the boys by allowing any request.
Superintendent files with his answer a statement from
Dr. Allen, physician of the school, to the effect that
Superintendent Friedman was interested i1n every phase of the
children®s health individually and collectively; that he
seconded his efforts to raise the health standard and knows
that he iInsisted on every employee doing his duty.
Superintendent Friedman files a statement signed by
24 employees, among whom he says five out of six persons
on charge of all the boys and girls, that he has not attempted
to get students endorsement as he does not think 1t proper
to have them pass judgment upon employees in charge of them.
The statement is as follows: "
Mr. Friedman has always treated us In a just manner

and has cooperated with us in every way and has shown
a great iInterest and sympathy iIn us, our work and

welfare. He visited our departments regularly and
frequently and inspired us by his interest and
encouragement to do out best. He has shown a deep

interest in the individual welfare of the pupils
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in our department.” Signed Elizabeth Jones,

Claude M. Stauffer, Glenn S. Warner, Sara A. Rice,

S. J. Eori, Beatrice Herman, Geo. Abrams, Louils
Hathaway, W. H. Deitz, George Faulk, Augustus

Kensler, John A. Heri, William Honest, Charles H.
Cairns, John Albright, Ella Albert, A. B. Ruohell,
Arthur G. Brown, Emma H. Foster, Lelah M. Bums, Anna
H. Ridenour, Mary R. Austin, Ora L. Knight, E. McKean."
Statement sworn to (by telegram March 11, 1914 Mr.
McKean says he signed the paper yesterday which all
the time he did not understand; respectfully requests
that his name be dropped from same.)

Superintendent files copy of letter to Indian
Office showing reasons he gave in March 1913 for Rudy®s
not being satisfactory as a disciplinarian and suggesting
McKean with sub-note that Mrs. LaFleeche recommended

MoKean and both have been disloyal.

Specification 8, Charge 11
That a large number of girl students were ruined
by your neglect in failing to maintain proper
night watchman and policing the grounds.

The Inspector believes that the reason fire escapes have
not been provided is because of the opportunity it might afford
the boys to enter the girls®™ dormitory building at night; that
a couple of competent white men should be provided as night

watchmen; that it i1s one of the crying needs of the school;

that 1t has been the cause of much immorality, lack of discipline,
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"boys breaking into the dormitory, etc.; that heretofore the
grounds have been policed at night with a detail of boy .pupils;
that they are changed two or three times each night and these
student guards would allow their friends to come andugo at
their pleasure; that when taps were sounded an inspection of
the rooms might disclose that all the boys had retired, but
in ten minutes thereafter they might be up and dressed and go
down to Carlisle town, obtain whiskey, return to the grounds
under the influence of liquor, bring liquor on the grounds
and break 1nto the girls®™ dormitory and do things which could
not obtain under a proper guard of night watchmen who would
enforce strict discipline.
Superintendent Friedman®s Answer.

He denies the charge that any of the girl students were
ruined by any neglect of his, and that the number of cases of
immorality at Carlisle iIs no greater than in any other well
protected and well administered boarding school, whether for
Indians or whites; that outside watchmen have never been
employed for the reason that when the disciplinarian did his
duty and checked up his help there was no trouble; that he
continued the system he found, but installed 24 night stations
and two night watchmen clocks; that McKean was given orders

frequently to be careful in selecting men for this duty; that
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there are three large eleotrio lights on the front of the
girlal building and three large electric lights have recently
been installed; all burn all night; that a year ago he
increased the matrons to three, and has done everything iIn
his power for properly protecting the morals and well being
of the school and encloses statements from head matrons and
assistants; that very few cases where girls were implicated
occurred i1n the girls®™ building after taps and before morning;
that many occurred under the outing system when absent from
the sohool; that a majority of the oases in the girls”
building happened when Miss Jennie Gaither was matron and

was due to her imepmpetenoy, that she finally was removed

and afterwards transferred and promoted at another large

sohool.

CHARGE. 111.

Cruel and unjust treatment of the pupils of
the school.

Specification 1.

That at your instigation, one Paul Jones and one
Ethel Williams, students of said school, were
arrested on tjie oharge of fornication and committed
to the county jail of Cumberland County, Pa. 1In
violation of the statutes of Pa. which makes it a
misdemeanor punishable by fine only; and that

you permitted Paul Jones to remain in said county
jail and to be associated with criminals without
change of clothing for a period of 70 days.
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¥+e Inspector "brings up the cases referred to iIn the
charge, mwWo were so placed in jail during September 1913;
that Jones i1s a Umatilla Indian about 20 years old and was
enrolled February 1, 1912; that Ethel Williams iIs a Hew York
Indian girl of 18.,yoars and came to the school,in Hovember
1912; they were charged with toraicatiun by Kean, discipli-
narian In September 1913 and by direction were arrested on a
warrant sworn out by Kean under the direction of Superintendent
Friedman and placed in the County Jail iIn charge of Sheriff
Walters, Jones being carried there without coat or vest; that
the District Attorney prepared an indictment but did not sign
it; that they never were brought into court, but they were
induced by the District Attorney to plead guilty while iIn jail
as Mr. McKean says i1n order that they might begin theilr service
right away and get out earlier. Judge Sanders wrote on the
back of the unsigned indictment that on September 23, 1913, he
sentenced them to pay the costs of prosecution and be iImprisoned
for 60 days until sentence has®"been complied with; the
Inspector says the laws of the State do not provide Imprisonment
for this offense, only a fine; that Jones was- brought to

county jail handcuffed after being in the school jail for

three days; that during his iIncarceration he was not visited

by any one from the school; that he was-turned iIn among a
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lot of hardened criminals, negroes and jail birds, In a
filthy, unsanitary jail, alive with vermin and made to
associate with criminals for 70 days.

Ethel Williams was treated better and was taken 1in
charge by the kind hearted wife of the jailer and kept at
home doing house work so that she did not have to consort
with criminals. Both were kept seven to ten days beyond
their sentence. After being released they were sent home.

There were numerous other cases and In one iInstance
under direction of Superintendent Friedman, Principal Whitwell
took a boy from school down town, had him arrested on a charge
of petit larceny of some pies from the bakery, and was kept 1iIn
jJail for 30 days.

Charles Kelsey, a Winnebago Indian boy, 23 years old,
at time of Inspector’s arrival procured some whiskey from
a bootlegger, was under its influence, had an altercation with
Mr. McKean and struck him over the head with a skate, cutting
him quite badly; that he visited him in jail and found him
penitent for the act committed when drunk, had no bad feelings
towards Mr. McKean, was anxioue to get out ; said he would
publioly apologize before the school and sign a pledge on his

honor not to touch liquor. The Inspector felt he was sincere
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and believing it a turning point, Mr. McKean, on bis
suggestion withdrew the charge, and the young man returned
to the school and did as he agreed and he believes that
this will be the making of the boy but i1f he haa been ex-
pelled according to the expressed wish of Superintendent
Friedman, no good would have resulted.

That there have been numbers of oases where pupils have
been put 1In the county jail for trivial offences when such
cases should have been attended to by the Superintendent at
the school. The school jail is said to be sanitary, heated
by steam, lighted by electricity, clean, provided with running
water and all conveniences, concrete floors and in all respects
a much more desireous place for the discipline of the pupils
than the county jail which is extremely filthy and unsanitary,
filled with vermin and the association of the student-prisoner
with the hardened criminal element found there is anything but
good or reformatory. It should only be resorted to In extreme

oases.

The Inspector says that In other iInstances the boys at
the sohool have gotten drunk, broken into dormitories of the

girls®™ building, debauched them and that no severe punishment

was meted out to them; that a boy would be thrown into
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the county jail, serve a sentence of 30 days, he expelled
from school, for stealing pies and then they would minimize
the offense of hoys who met girls improperly and debauched

them, and iIn his opinion was one cause of the school rebellion.

Superintendent Friedman®s Answer.
Admits directing the arraignment of Paul Jones and
Ethel Williams in the State Court and says indictments were
regularly prepared hy the District Attorney and both defendants
plead guilty in open court; the law provides that the sentence
to he imposed hy the State Court is a fine of $100.00 with
oost3 of prosecution and in case of failure to pay fine and
costs, the defendants are directed to he committed to the
county jail where no discharge can he had until 90 days have
elapsed under Sec. 47, Alt. 1836; that the defendants 1n
this case when they plead guilty stated their i1nability
to pay the fine and costs; that technically the satence
should have been merely for non-payment of fine and costs
which carried with 1t imprisonment for 90 days; that he did
not oontrol, iInstigate or advise the action.
Paul Jones has a had record according to the dis-
ciplinarian, having been several times iIn the guard house

and on his own admission, been In jail on his reservation
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for horse stealing and fighting his superintendent and
that he came to Carlisle to get away from the sheriff
who wanted him for hoot legging.

He says that Ethel Williams has a had record; came
from a low element on a Hew York Indian Reservation ana files
copy of a letter to her from one of her friends iIn Syracuse,
H. Y. which Superintendent claims shows immorality among her
friends; that her record at Carlisle has been had; that
she deserted from the country home; that she has had trouble
with hoys before; that the matron reported her as a constant
offender.

Superintendent gives his reasons for arraigning these
pupils before the Court (1) his deep iInterest in the moral
welfare of the students and his desire to make an object
lesson, i1n which opinion the faculty concurred (2) the refor-
mation of the two. That if they had needed anything iIn
jail, as they were still under his jurisdiction, they could
have had i1t, but no application was made therefor; that
the boy under the direct jurisdiction of the county officials
should have supplied him with clothing and any negligence in
that respect: was not his fault; that they were expelled by

order of the Indian Office.
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Specification 2. Charge 111.
That you caused certain students to he put in jail of
Cumberland County, Pa. for trivial offenses, such as
stealing pies, eto. and to be associated with criminals.
The basis of this charge is found iIn the Inspector®s
statement of the case under Specification 1, of Charge 111,

Just discussed.

Superintendent Friedman®s Answer.

Denies this charge and that no student has been sentenced
to the county jail through his influence except those guilty of
offenses properly punishable by law and then only after
proof of bad character* etc. The case of the boy sentenced
for stealing a pie included house-breaking as he broke an
outside lock and forced his way and took 20 pies from the
bakery of the sohool, threw the plates®away and disposed of the
pies; that he was a bad character, untruthful and dishonest;
he refers to several cases under the first Superintendent of
the school from 1898 to 1901, in which sentences were iIm-

posed from 2 months to 2 years.
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Specifioation 3, Charge I11.

That you encouraged corporal punishment at the

sohool as exemplified by your order for the

whipping of Julia Hardin by bandmaster Claude

M. Stauffer and by the whipping of four boys

in the jail by acting disciplinarian Dickey.

Julia Hardin a 374 blood Pottawattomie Indian girl
18 years of age was suggested for transfer to the eoimtry
under the outing system during the summer o0f3913; she
declined to go until she could get her clothes ready.
Superintendent Friedman sent Bandmaster Stauffer to induce
her to consent. The girl refused, and on reporting to
Superintendent Friedman, suggested she should have a spanking
and Superintendent said "'why don®"t you give it to her?",
to which Stauffer replied "I will give i1t to her i1If you say
so”, and was told to ""go ahead". Stauffer went back, talked
to Julia, failed to persuade her, then struck her i1n the
face with his hand, followed up with striking her over the
head, shoulders and back, after he had thrown her down on
the floor, and according to the girl hit her 40 or 50 times;
that she was held by the matron Miss Kidenour and was on
the floor while he was whipping her; that he also spanked
her with his hand. She thus testified before the Congress-
ional Committee.

Principal John Whitwell was called in and according to

he and the girl“s statements, by kindness i1nduced her to
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go, after which she was locked up and then sent to the
home of a Hr. Crawford in Merchantville, H. J. where she
was employed for three months in the Kkitchen, cooking,
dish washing and launderying, etc. for $6.00 per month.

the stauement of Stauffer under oath was taken hy
the Inspector in the Office in the presence of the Financial
Clerk, Miller, and Stenographer, Miss Herman, hut subsequently
he refused to sign it and wished to substitute another state-
ment. As he had been first sworn before giving the testimony
he refused to sign, the Inspector deemed i1t immaterial and told
him that 1f he did not choose to do so he was excused, there-
upon he informed the Inspector "1"11 give you to understand
you are not Superintendent here; you can®t bluff us the
way you have been doing things around here', to which he
was told that he was excused. Stauffer then indulged in
more strong language and i1nformed the Inspector he was no
gentleman.

The statement Stauffer wished to substitute contained
an allegation that Whitwell had pulled Julia up from the
floor saying that she did not have half enough of a whipping
and threatened to give her more; this was denied by Whitwell

in an affidavit before the Inspector.
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The crus of this charge iIs that Superintendent
Friedman authorized the whipping of this young, nearly
white girl, 18 years of age.

Under Superintendent Friedman’s administration, David
H. Dickery, Outing Agent, inflicted corporal punishment
in the school jail during the winter 1913-1914, on four
Indian hoy pupils; Thomas necklace, Charles Belcourt,
Robert Rash and Charles Williams, ranging in age from 17
to £4 years; that they were punished with a trunk strap
after having been made to stoop over in a reclining position,
holding their hands over a stationary wash bowl, giving them
each about 50 lashes; the witnesses were Coach Warner, Band-
master Stauffer, John M. Rudy and Mr. Deitz, the first two
were there to see the work properly done and Warner - not
an employee - commanded the boys to put up their hands over
the wash bowl and bend down to receive the punishment.

Superintendent Friedman®s Answer.

He denies that he has encouraged corporal punishment,
and that a fair iInvestigation and examination of witnesses
will prove that he has always been opposed to it and so
advised employees and required that his permission should
be obtained before i1t could be administered; that while

the fact was known on the grounds, he did not tell the



students of his attitude, "ut explained to the employees
that with 70 of them, some one would wrongfully resort to

it or over do i1t i1f such general permission was granted;
that he recalls only two oases where granred permission as

a means of enforcing discipline, which were the Hardin oase
referred to, and which at the time was most heartily approved
by the principal teacher, head matron, assistant matron

and outing manager and he had every evidence that the punish-
ment was humane, proper and not severe.

The other occasion was granting Wallace Denny, assistant
disciplinarian, permission in a case of a very refraotious,
incorrigible and impertinent boy student; ;fdet about a year
ago he reprimanded Mr. Denny for whipping a boy and says that
in his letter he advocated as he had always done, punishment
by confinement in the guard house at hard labor and deprivation
of privileges, etc.

Says the punishment by Dickey, referred to in the
charge was without his knowledge, or consent and files a
letter from Denny in which he Bays that Superintendent
Friedman was no consulted in the case and knew nothing of
the occurrance as i1t was well known at the time that he
was opposed to corporal punishment, but the oase referred to
was, In the Opinion of Denny, an emergency requiring dis-

cipline.
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Specification 4. Charge 111.
That former students and graduates of the school
who sought employment within arbitrarily-fixed
lines of the Carlisle Outing System were improperly
treated by you and made to lose their positions.

The Inspector says that Outing AgentuDickey
informed him that Superintendent Friedman had once instructed
him to get evidence against John McGinnis, a former Indian
student who had returned to Carlisle.

It appears that one of the rules of the Super-
intendent prohibits none of the students or graduates of
Carlisle school to remain in the vicinity of Carlisle, the
boundaries of which he fixed as outing district; students
whose terms of enrollment had expired or graduates or students
who had learned a trade at the school were prohibited from
seeking employment or procuring situations within this outing
district and the Inspector had numberless iInstances given him
where former students were forced out of their positions and
made to leave the district on the theory that their influence
was bad, and that former students had been denied access to
the school grounds.

The Inspector cites a few cases such as that of

Sam Sannook who for eight years was employed iIn the Pennsylvania

Railroad shops at Altoona, former student of the school, was
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not allowed on the grounds and that Superintendent Friedman
had written his foreman, trying to get him dismissed, charging
that he was pursuading the hoys to run away; says he did not
do so, hut he did find employment in the shops for Francis
Preanbaum who had runaway. This hoy was afterwards arrested
and returned for the reason, Sam hays, that Coach Warner had
ordered i1t as the hoy was a foot-hall player - that the hoy
again ran away, went to St. Louis, found work in the railroad
yards there and had both legs cut off.

Another case was Montreville Yuda, who, after his
graduation, went to his home in Hew York, later returned to
Carlisle and obtained a job which he alleges Superintendent
Priedman made him lose job after job, put the police on
him and tried to have him placed in jail and run out of town.
He 1s now running a small store in town of Carlisle. He
testified before the Commission.

Another oase is that of Morris Huff, whose five year term
expired in July 1913. He 1s 20 years old, employed hy some
good people out In the country and has been forced hy the
Superintendent to sign up at the school against his earnest

protest; the money for his labor goes through the Superin-

tendent®s office. Lewis Schweigman, a Siuux Indian hoy,
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having completed his term at the school in 1913, returned
home and at request of Superintendent Friedman brought a
party of pupils to the school in the fall and was told he
could take up the sign painters trade, but was put to work
as a janitor in the school building and finally expelled and
sent home without jJust cause; that he afterwards obtained
employment as a painter ay Grayson, about 6 miles from Carlisle,
but fearing he would be disturbed by the Superintendent,
appealed to the Superintendent for protection; that this boy
came to Carlisle school at his request to testify before the
Commission and was under orders of the Superintendent ordered
off by the disciplinarian; the boy gave testimony before the
Commission.
Answer of Superintendent Friedman.

Says any action taken by him in the manner noted by
. this specification was just and proper and was done in the
interest of discipline and for the welfare and protection
of the morals of the outing pupils as well as those of the
school . He brings up two cases

Morris Huff, a returned student came back to an outing
destitute and obtained employment with Mrs. Hartman at Yordley,
Pa. and the Superintendent submits correspondence with Indian

Office regarding it. It appears that Morris Huff enrolled
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in the school i1In 1908 for five years; 1In June 1912 severed

his connection and went home, remaining a short time with

his parents, returned to the home of Mrs. Hartman with whom

he formerly was at Outing, that when he (Friedman) learned

of this he was told i1if he wished to remain in an outing

distriot he must re-enroll as the school did not permit.this

to he done; that Huff was not an outing pupil, hut a free

Indian living at the home of one of the school patrons and

to enjoy this privilege he must enroll. Superintendent files

Office letter dated December 22, 1913, approving his position

with reference to the control of Indians iIn your outing district.
The other case of that of Montreville Yuda, a graduate of

Carlisle who obtained employment at an 1oe cream establishment

in the town; that Yuda®s Indian origin was doubtful, that

he had an unsavory record, had boon disciplined for visiting

baudy houses and indxicing other boys to go with him; spent

a large part of his time as an assistant to Mr. Whitwell and

was graduated with his vigorous approval and against the advice

of Mrs. Foster, senior teacher and other employees; he was

furnished government transportation home and promised not to

return. His return was a menace to boys and especially to

girls; that at his (Freidman®s) request the ice cream parlor

proprietor discontinued his services; he iInsisted on staying
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at Carlisle although was told where he could get a place
in another town, and now runs., a disreputable store hack
of the school and there dispenses cigarettes, tobacco and
snuff to Indian students, and he has been iInformed that
whiskey and card playing are indulged in. Contends that
his action was i1n conformity with Commissioner®s letter of

December £2, 1913.

Specification 5. Charge 111.

That you have exaggerated and abused the outing
system and have forced pupils on outings at nominal
wage against their best iInterests.

The Inspector says that too frequently at Carlisle
carefully selected homes have not been used for these pupils,
the 1dea seems to have been to send out as. many as possible
and make as good showing as possible in the amount earned and
that force of numbers rather than carefully selected homes
to meet the requirements of each individual has been the case
that girls get an average of $5 to $8 a month and boys 8§14
to 815.

The outing matron, Mrs. LaPlesohe, coincides in the view
expressed by the Inspector and thinks not enough pains are

taken to get the proper home and says that boys and girls are

constantly being forced out to work on farms and in Kkitchens



and it i1s alleged that many pupils who have come from homes
where there are public school facilities are forced into

the country on this system to work for a mere pittance

and in many places attend public country schools that are no
better or as good as those they left at home. The patrons
are anxious to employ these students, not as philanthropists
but to get cheap labor on the farms and iIn their Kitchens,
especially iIn view of the fact that their wages are about
one half of what would have to be paid for white labor;

this notwithstanding they are sent to school with the under-

standing that they are to receive academic and industrial
training at the sohool or learn a trade, are sent out iInto
the country.

Mrs. L. M. Johnson, field agent, has been at Carlisle
7 years and In her present position a year and a half; she
says they had 250 girls out last summer, all of whom are
employed as assistants and perform practically the same
duties as a hired girl, - cooking, washing dishes, sweeping,
making beds, etc.; that white and negro girls get $5.00
a week for this work while the Indian receives only $6 to $10
a month. Many of the girls attend public school 100 days

a year, during which time they get no wages; their conduct
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i1s generally good i1n winter when only a few are out, hut
troubles multiply 1In summer when many are out; that the
greatest trouble i1s from indifference, untruthfulness,
imprudence, carelessness, eto; that they are generally in

good homes and that now there is little immorality among

them; that she only knows of one case last winter; that
patrons are not philanthropists and only want cheap labor; that
generally the influence of patrons is good; the pupils generally
make good progress in the public schools; that Superintendent
Priedman urges her to get the girls and boys out, the object
being to have more wages and make a better showing; she
doesn®t think pupils ought to be made to go out into the
country.

David H. Dickey is boys outing agent, who whipped four
boys in jail and heretofore referred to, says he had four
hundred boys out last summer, mostly on farms, about 25 at
trades such as helpers, blacksmiths, carpenters and painters;
that he looks after the boys, places them in homes, adjusts
their troubles, tries to put them in homes of the same religious
proclivities; that he whipped two boys in the country at
the request of the sohool teacher.

Answer of Superintendent Priedman.

Denies the charge and asserts that he has not only
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kept the outing system up to its former standard, hut

has eliminated abuses which formerly crept into it; that

one of the first orders he issued to outing agents required
tham to personally see that the pupils received a fair wage
for work performed; that while he recognized the spdaidid
training obtained by the pupils in civilization farming,
housekeeping, etc. he found they were not getting a proper
wage and he believes they are now getting it. He discontinued
the practices of sending girls as waitresses to sea side resorts
for obvious reasons; that he -jiscontinued letting favored
persons in cities have girl pupils, running the risk of in-
curring powerful enmity by doing so; that he has shortened

the term of outing pupils as he found that a large number

of pupils formerly spent many years out and very few In the

the schools; that he brought about an Improvement in finding
employment for pupils at the trades; he files as exhibits to
show his great interest in the outing work, not as a Depart-
ment but as a training school aiding them to the best in
civilization and industry, his annual reports for five years

past.
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Charge 1V. Miauae of the Carlisle Athletio Fond.

Specification -
That you (@ wrongfully converted to your own use and

benefit $580 worth of railroad mileage out of aaid fund,

and that (b) from said fund you paid hundreds of dollars
for hotels, theater, and other personal expenses; that

you (o) had daily newspapers and other articles paid

out of athletic funds for your own personal use and benefit;
that (d) you permitted said athletio funds to be wrongfully
used iIn the payment of attorneys, newspaper correspondents,
ministers, foot-ball players (both directly in cash and
indirectly In various store accounts) and hotel and club

bills for guests; that (e) you used said funds for loans
of money, payment of employees who were receiving a

Government salary, of police for arrests of students,
of omhestra, insurance, etc.

The Inspector says that this athletic fund has been the

prolific cause of bad feeling, unrest and injustice to
the pupils then everything else combined; in fact that the
school has been subservant iIn everything to foot-ball; that
foot-ball players had the best of all that was going, special
quarters, special food and special privileges; that these
very constantly in evidence to the vast body of pupils not
favored with strong bodies to join the team. They were
given watches, medals, suits, overcoats and money as well,
spending the major part of the sohool life iIn training and
on the road. When only about 60 were thus specially favored
and all else subordinated to them i1t can be seen that the

discipline and morals of the entire school suffered In every



respect. As to the magnitude of this hranoh, the receipts
from foot-hall aggregated from 1907 to 1913, the vast sum of
two hxmdred and twenty-three thousand, seven hundred and
eighty nine dollars and eighty-three cents ($223,789.83).

As to how this fund has been used, the Inspector pre-
pared a list of twenty-three typewritten pages showing checks
drawn against the fund, which shows hundreds of payments to
various fToot-hall players, to ministers of the gospel, to
Government employees already drawing salaries from the Govern-
ment, to newspaper correspondents, to attorneys, to press
clipping bureaus, to insurance, for hotel hills and club dues
at the mess for visitors, to jewellers, $580 to Superintendent
Friedman for mileage hooks, numerous hotel hills and expense
trips and theater tickets for Superintendent Friedman, amounting
to hundreds of dollars, as well as Hew York Times and other
daily papers for him, expenses of Superintendent to;Washington
which enter In his Government accounts, payments to Chief of
Police of Carlisle and to sheriffs and detectives for arrests
of pupils, to Mrs Friedman as expense for entertaining guests,
musicians, etc. A camera was bought for a newspaper man
and it i1s significant that the ministers who have received

money out of the fund were witnesses for Mr. Friedman before
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the Committee.

Hugh Miller, newspaper correspondent, connected with
Associated Press and other papers, and J. 1. Martin, a
newspaper correspondent, were paid hundreds of dollars;

John M. Ray, attorney, was paid $100 a year ostensibly to
audit accounts, and John Wetzel of Carlisle received attorney
fees for what does not appear; that the Springville Canning
Company received large checks for canned goods. Coach Warner
iIs said to he iInterested in this Company and Warner received
$1500 for expenses of a single trip. It is significant that
that name of James Thorpe is iIncluded iIn the list of salaried
foot-hall players. Warner gets $4000 a year and in addition
i1s furnished at the school with oomfortahle quarters, light,
fuel and water hy the Government while trades people could
not get any quarters at the school.

These Government employees received salary from this
fund: W. H. Miller, Financial Clerk, $35.00 a month keeping
hooks; R. L. Mann, Teacher, $15.00 a month for Y. M. C. A.
work; Mrs. E. H. Foster, teacher, $15.00 a month, Y. M. C. A.
work; Assistant, $500 a year, acting as Assistant Coach.

Dickinson College received tuition for foot-hall hoys

attending 1t and kept for the purpose of playing the game.
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Superintendent Friedman and wife received from 1909
to 1913, | for expenses to Washington, Boston, Philadelphia,
etc.
Insurance on buildings was paid out of this fund.
The Carlisle Chief of Police gets $2.00 out of this fund
for the arrest of each pupil found iIn Carlisle without a pass.
From 1907 to 1908, Major Mercer bought a lot of I. P. Bond
which were subsequently sold at a profit of $1588.00.
The money paid foot-ball players totals for 1907-8,
sum of $9233.00 of which Thorpe got $500.
Material for business department to amount of $7000
and for printing office $2500 came from this fund. The old
hospital was remodelled for athletic quarters about $13,000
and Warner®s cottage $3400, were built out of this fund as well
as the art building, $3500.
Books and accounts are properly kept and shows balance in
fund on February 14, 1914, was $25,640.08.
While some or this fund has been put to good use, a large
part has evidently been recklessly if not corruptly used.
The fact isnthat athletics ranks first at Carlisle, the
Band as second, commencement exercises third; that everything

is done for advertisement, show and glitter to the sacrifice
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of schooling, farming, gardening, trades and industrial and
moral teaching.
Answer of Superintendent Priedman.

Superintendent denies that he has misused the athletic
funds, and that i1f i1t cou}.d legally he established that he had,
he 1s responsible solely to the Association for the reason that
these funds are not and never have been Government money, for
which he was accountable.

He gives the history of the Association and says when he
came 1t was one in name only as during administration of General
Pratt he handled and disbursed all the athletic money - during
Major Mercer®s adrainistration, there was no organization, but
he understands Mercer did not handle personally any of the funds;
that soon after he qualified the Association was chartered by
the State, and that the moneys of the Association never came
into his hands and therefore he could not bo held by any Depart-
ment regulation; that he i1s one of the three executive members
of the Committee and that all expenditures were sanctioned by
the Committee.

He says that the mileage books granted him by the Association
were for use where the Government did not pay for the trip and

such transportation was used by him only for such trips, not
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for pleasiire or personal business; that he and Mrs. Friedman
have made,two or three trips each season to Carlisle®s most
prominent games because it was legitimate and his presence was
an inspiration to the "boys; that it iIs the custom to so defray
expenses of the faculty on such occasions and the amount of
$580 is only $100 a year - quite small when it is considered
that much of i1t was used for guests.

He denies the newspapers ordered in his name were for
his personal use, hut were for the reading rooms.

Says attorney fees were for legitimate services rendered
to the Association or the school, such as charter, contracts
with Warner, fees for a seduction oase, etc.

He followed the ouston of paying for newspaper publicity
but cut 1t down.

Justifies payments to ministers as part of the custom
for 15 years past.

Says payments to foot-ball players was eliminated after
his firs"t year and then he established General Pratt"s plan
of giving a suit of clothes, merely as an appreciation as he
has abolished professionalism.

He denies that hotel bills and clud bills for guests were

wrongfully paid from these funds, but all such payments were



legitimate. It was part of the contract that expenses
of visiting teams should he paid, and it was legitimate
to pay hills of lecturers, Y. M. C. A. and Y. W. G. A. workers.

Justifies loan of $50.00 to Lewis Tewanina to go to
Olympic games which was paid hack hy his turning over his
trophies to the Association.

Another loan was to Gus Y/Zelch as an act of charity to
enable him to go home on account of serious illness of his
brother.

Denies misuse of funds to pay employees and says as the
funds are not Government he has violated no law. Contends
employments were lawful and for the best interest of the pupils.

Says expense of orchestra was for the association®s own
receptions and refers to a recent authority to Mr. Lipps to
use not exceeding $200.00 for athletic reception and banquet.

As funds of Association were used to build athletic
quarters and college buildings payment of insurance thereon
was proper.

Answers generally that the Committee has used the surplus
funds of the Association iIn 1ts discretion granted by the
Association for the welfare of the school or the students
thereof and,

I believe also that said Committee deserves much
credit for putting athletics at the Carlisle school

upon the cleanest basis that has ever obtained during
the history of the iInstitution.
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BUIdIIARY BY THE INSPECTOR.

The Inspector is of opinion that the testimony of farmers,
gardeners, dairymen, oarpenters, mason, carriage maker,
shoemaker, tailor, "blacksmith, painter, engineer, seamstress,
disciplinarian, assistant disciplinarian, former disciplinarians,
principal of the school, several teachers, fourteen representa-
tive "boys, outing matron, girls® fTield agent, certain clerks
and former employees, that Superintendent Friedman does not
have the 'best interests of pupils and school at heart; that
he has neglected to supervise the iIndustrial departments;
that he has neglected to have the iIndustries, such as agri-
culture, etc. property taught; that he has neglected the
proper detailing of pupils to the Industrial departments and
shops for a sufficient length of time to 'te effective; that
he permitted these to be"haphazzarded™ by the disciplinarian
without proper cooperation with the boys or instructors affected;
that an insufficient amount of food was supplied as well as
table ware; that the Government ration was not supplemented
by vegetables raised at the school or which should have been
raised there; that the mattresses on the beds in the dor-
mitories were unfit for use, hard packed down, and matted

by years of jise and should have been condemned and replaced
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by new onea; that only one towel a week was provided and
dormitory in had condition; that discipline on his arrival
was very had indeed; that an open rebellion was iImminent;
that i1t was due to lack of sympathy hy the Superintendent
for the pupils and by lack of respect on their part for him;
that Superintendent lacked sympathy and was unjust to certain
pupils; that he was unjust to certain employees; that
athletics and foot-hall occupied the full stage and all else
was secondary; that Superintendent used and permitted the
athletic funds to he improperly used; that professionalism
crept into the foot-hall; that foot-hall players were
specially favored; that Superintendent put students iIn jail
for trifling offenses and and other unjustly; that Superin-
tended encouraged and permitted corporal punishment; that
according to former printer Miller liquor was served at
Superintendent"s table and that?gmployees Stauffer and Hori
and coach Warner; that favoritism was shown foot-hall
players and certain employees; that former students and
graduates who sought employment in outing districts
arbitrarily established were improperly treated and some
made to lose their jobs; that Superintendent has lost the
good will practically of all the pupils and a majority of

the employees; that the outing system has been exaggerated



apu-i

and abused; that the morals of the school have "been very
had; that Superintendent has presented false accounts

for mileage which had been paid for out of athletic funds; there-
fore he recommends the permanent dismissal of Superintendent

Moses Priedman.

i-r*
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OARLISLT', PA.

The alte of the Carlisle Barracks was selected
In the first year of the Revolutionary war with Great
Britain as a military rendezvous and encampment, and was
established as a milllary post In 1777. After the talcing
of Trenton by Washington, this post was used as a plaoe
of confinement for the Hessian prisoners captured there.
It -ms given free of rental to the province and the Common-
wealth of Pennsylvania by the penn proprietors from 1765
to 1801.

January 31, 1801, the reservation, comprising
29 aores 124 perches of land, was conveyed to the united
States, by John Penn of Stoke Pogls, In the County of
Bucks and kingdom of Croat Britain, and Richard «enn of
Queen Ann Street West, In the parish of St. *arylebone.
In the County 'Tiddlesex, of the kingdom of Great Britain,
by TTAward 'hysiok, of Philadelphia, their attorney In
faot. It wsb described aB follows:

Beginning at a poet on the bank of lie Tort a

thence by the land belonging to the heirs of Thom
deceased, the four next following courses and distances,
to wit: S 80° mm 14 perches to a poet; thence Li. 19°
11.7 peroheB to a post; thence .1° .38 perehes to a

post, and U. 60?° F. 52 perches to a post 4 perches from
the old channel at the breast of the old mill data; thence



3. 30c IS. 35*7 perches ten. black walnut, corner tc land
acid by Jonathan Holmes tc the United States and corner

tc land of Thomas Duncan, esq.j thSnoe by the land of said
Thomas Duncan, esq., S. 3lic W, 58.5 perohes tc a heap of
atone, corner to the said Thomas Duncan, esqg., and John
Hughes lot, - feet cast of the magazine; thence by said
Hughes's lot S. W,22 perches tcapost; thence if. 84c W
crossing the lane hereinafter ncnticnea and by another lane
of 2 perches wide (between this land and the lot of John
Montgomery, esq., Ho. 91) 46 perches tc a post or* the bank
of Le Tort spring; thence down the said spring tc the place
of beginning, containing 27 acres 108 perches, exclusive of
the first mentioned land which Is comprehended In this survey
and contains 82 square perches.

In 1863 the buildings were destroyed by a detachment
of rebel cavalry under Fitzhugh Lee. They were rebuilt in
1865-'66, and the barracks were occupied as a cavalry school
and depot until 1872, when the depot was transferred to St.
£cula, and the place was practically unoocupied until 1879.

On the 23d of August, 1879, the Secretary cf $ar
transferred the Carl!ole Barracks tc the Interior Department
for Indian school purposes, occupation thereof .c be resumed
by the War Department whenever needed for military purposes,
cr dion required by Congressional aotlcn tc bo reserved. On
the 61h of September, 1679, Capt. Pratt waa ordered tcC take
charge cf th? property and establish a school, and a. the 1st
cf the following November the school waa opened.

By the Indian appropriation act, approved March 2,
1887, Congress appropriated $18,000 for the purchase by the

United States cf additional land for farming purposes for the

Carlisle Industrial School, being the "Parker farm,"” sc called,



containing about 109 acres (24 Stats., 465). A deed was
executed April 7, 1887, by Hadaaaah Parker, Richard M. Parker
and Mary P. MoEeehan, conveying to the United States for
$18,000 the following described tract of land in Middleton
Township, Cumberland County, Pa., viz:

Beginning at a post at the intersection cf the Pccrhcuse
read and the road running tc the Harrisburg and Chamborburg
turnpike; thence along said Pccrhcuse rcada 50° west 158
perches; thence by land cf Alexander’'s heirs north 2970
wdst 91.6 perohes tc a dead walnut;, thsnoe by land cf'the
United States north 13$%° east 50 perches tc a run; thence by
the several courses and distances along .-said run, tc wit:

N. 69c 45" E. 3.1 ptrohes, N. 34c 30' W. 7.7 perches, N. 59c
lu K. 65.8 perches, N. 81£ 30' i£. 7 perches, N. 53fc 30* B.

5.2 perches, S. 61° 30’ E. 3.7 perches, N. 36C 30’ E. 2 perches.
S. 53° 30' E. 6.6 perohes, N. 42c E. 4.2 perohes, 8. 88" 45"
E. 4 perches, 8. 28~ 15" E. 8.3 perches, N. 84° 30’ 3.1
perches, H. 23c E. b.8 perches, S. 51° E. 7.5 perches, H. 58°
30" E. 6 perches; thence N. 4n~-30' E. 3.1 perohes, N. 32c

4 perches, N. 20c E. 4 perches, H. 61<* 45’ E. 3 perches, N.
86 Y, 6 perohes, making by the aevernl distances 167.1 perohes
tc one public road; thence along said road S, 5C 30* E. 14.8
perches tc stones; thence by the same S. tl*- 45" E. 73.5
perches tc the place of beginning, containing 109 acres and

54 perches.

This deed, with on dbstraot of title and certified
copy of act cf the General Assembly cf the State cf Pennsylvania,
approved April 6, 1887, granting the consent cf the State fer
the purchase c¢f said land, was approved by the Atterney-General
April 26, 1887. It was recorded in Cumberland County, Pa.,
May 6, 1887.

The land is red clay cr limestone, adapted for wheat,
barley, cats, corn, potatoes, and garden products. The Le
Tcrt spring is a Bmall stream forming the northern boundary

of the farm; a large spring rising on the east side affords



an abundant supply cf excellent water.

A farm cf 157 acres just below the tcwn cf
Middlesex, cn the Philadelphia and Pittsburg pike, purchased
by friends cf the achccl and title rested in a beard cf
trustees, is used by the Carlisle sohccl and the Gcrernrent

pays therefor a rental cf $600 per annum.

ae
M- 8X-daK<*



April 14, 1914.

Mr. 0. H. Lipps,

Supervisor in Charge,
Carlisle Indian School,

Carlisle, Pennsylvania.
My dear Mr. Lippa:

I an returning herewith the expense
accounts of S. J. Nori and August Kenaler for their
recent trip to Washington, which expense ~ill be
borne by the Joint Comalspion to Investigate Indian
Affairs.

Please have Mr. Nori and Mr. Kensler sign
the form cf bill for paid Joint Coreris?icn herewith
enclosed. Also nave Mr. Nori correct his traveling
expense olairr., so as to eliminate "Notary fees for
affidavit, ~0.351", -faich will change the total from
?13.to ?212.63. Ae you know, notary charges
are not allowed.

Alec Ilave Mr. Nori present sub-vouchers
for ais expanses, the same as did Mr. Kensler. When
this ie done kindly return all papers to Senator
Joe T. Robinson, Chairman Joint Commission to In-
vestigate Indian Affaire, United States Senate,
Washington, D. C., and he -ill transm.it to them
caecks in payment.

Please have this natter given your prompt
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April 14, 1914, r'

Mr. O. H. Lippe,

Supervisor in Charge,
Carlisle Indian School,

Carliele, Pennsylvania.
My dear Mr. Lippi:

I arc returning herewith the expense
aocounts of S. J. Nori and Auguet Ken3ler for their
recent trip to Washington, which expense r'ill be
borne by the Joint Commission to Investigate Indian
Affairs.

Fleaee have Mr. Nori and Mr. Kfinelor sign
the fora of bill for paid Joint Commission here-ith
enclosed. Also have Mr. Nori correct hie traveling
expense claim, so ae to eliminate "Notary fees for
affidavit, f0.2?", "‘hioh "--ill chanrre the total from
ei3.~P to f12.63. Ae you know, notary charges
ere not allowed.

Aleo have Mr. Nori present sub-vouchers
for .is expanses, the sane as did Mr. Keneler. Then
this is done kindly return all papers to Senator
Joe T. Robinson, Chairman Joint Cootlegion to In-
vestigate Indian Affairs, United States Senate,
Washington, D. C., and he will transmit to them
checks in payment.

Please have this natter given your prompt
and beet attention.

Very truly your?

Chief

*J 2C*

N

N



April 14, 1S14. \
61 * 1UdV
Mr. O. H. Lippa,

Supervi9or in Charge,
Carlisle Indian School,

Carlisle, Pennsylvania.
My dear Mr. lippa:

I wish you -wild at once procure from
Financial Clerk Miller tie Pills and voucuere submitted
in xayment for all tyjawriters jurchased out of the
Athletic Association funds, during the past several
years. Phow also -her. -n?ch bills -ere paid, and give
the number of tno check, date, and amount.

Please also give any data, copies of vouchers,
and information -ith relation to any typewriters which
have be°n purohaeed by the use of Government funds
there.

Your prompt attention to this matter will
be duly appreciated.

™ith regards and sincerr’ good wisheB,

Very truly vy

*JHC*



April 14, 1914.

Mr. O. H. Lipps,

Supervisor in Charge,
Carlisle Indian School,

Carlisle, Pennsylvania.
My dear Mr. lippa:

I wish you would at once procure from
Financial Clerk Miller the bills and voucuere submitted
in payment for all ty]e-*riters purchased out of the
Athletic Association funds during the past several
years. Snow also -hen such bills -ere paid, and give
the nunber of the check, date, and amount.

Pleaee also give any data, copies of vouchers,
and. information -ith relation to ary typewriters whioh
have be°n purchased by the use of Government funds
there.

Your prompt attention to this matter will
be duly appreciated,

With regards and sincere srood wishes .

«JHC*



April 1, 1914.
Supervisor in Charge,
Carlisle Indian School.
My dear Lippe:

The Commissioner has just prepared a telegram
directing the suspension cf Chief Clerk Nori without
pay. In t .is connection | wish you would have a talk
with Nori and state to him that it is important tnat
he remain there until after tho data fixed for the
hearing, April 24, ar.d try&t we soa.ll depend upon him
to be there at that time. He knows tuat this end of
the line ie interested in protecting the Government'e
interests, and hie beat interests.

Impress this upon him very strongly, and in
case anything should develop that would lead you to
believe rie vwg likely tc absent himself, <'mire me at
once.

Trusting you “re having F successful Commencement
week, and with warm personal regards, | air

Sincerely yours,

Chief Inspector.



*JHC *

Maroh 25, 1914.

Hon. Joe T. Robinson,
FLED BY C P.
Chairman, Joint Commission
to Investigate Indian Affairs,

0
United States Senate. ]f
My dear Mr. Robinson: co

In conformity with your verbal
request of yesterday and our conv”reation per-
taining to the investigation of Carlisle
Indian School by F. B. Linnen, Chief Inspector,
I have the honor to hand you herewith copy
of Inspector Linnen's report addressed to
the Honorable Secretary of the Interior, dated
February 34, 1914, and copy of his supplemental
report, dated Maroh 23, 1914, addressed to me.

Very truly youre,

(Signed) &ato Sells

Commissioner.

IKITIALIfJB COPY m FOR FILE.
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March 35, 1614.

Hon. Jo® T. Robin®on,

Chairman, Joint Commlesion
to Investigate Indian Affaire,

United 8tatee 8enate.
My dear Mr. Robinson:

In conformity rith your verbal
request of yesterday and our conversation per-
taining to the investigation cf Carlisle
Indian School by I. B. Linnen, Chief Inspector,
I have the honor to hand you herewith copy
of Inspector linnen's report addressed to
the Honorable Secretary of th8 Interior, dated
February 34, 1914, and copy of hie supplemental
report, dated Maroh 33, 1914, addressed to me.

Very truly yours,

(Signed} Cato Sella

Commiesloner.
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CLARENCE H. MACKAY, Pr

TELEGRAM

DELIVERY

The Rostal Telegraph-Cable Conrpany (Incorporated)transimits and delivers this message suljject to (he tems and conditions printed on the back of this Hark

—h PATENT No. 40528
Carlisle Pa X
A _
Commr cells , Indian Office,
Washn DC. U gj

Nori advises his hearing set Tfor March 26 ten oclock

Lipp, Supervisor



STAL TELEGRAPH - COMMERCIAL CABLES

CLARENCE H. MACKAY, Presio fmi.

NIGHT TELEGRAM

The Postal Telegraph+Cabie Gnpeny( Inoorporated) tranaits andl delivers Night Messages subject to thetems ard condlitions printed onthe back of this blank

DELIVERY No.

84-17040 DESIGN PATENT NO. 40529
133g Uu- 99collect Govt NM 930p .
Carlisle Pa Mar 23,14 rSYCx R
Commissioner Sells Indian Office Washn D.C. E <
- xf?

Meyer Miller Miss Herman and myself have "been subpoened as witnesses

for Priedman at Nori hearing Thursday and commanded to produce-'

vouchers records note books, check books correspondence et

relating to accounts pupils moneys and inspector linnens investi-

gation please confer with Linnen and department of justice and

wire me instructions as to what action should be taken by me I am

k juU . . . . . .
A veer anxious to avoid getting involved in any legal intanglements

and to protect the employes of this office from becoming so

involved special delivery letter mailed Linnen this afternoon
J Lipp, Supervisor



Inspection
EBL
CRY¥

MR 23

My dear Mr. Graham:

Referring to the telephone conversation
between yourself and the cemmissioner of Indian Affaire
this morning, | desire to invite your attention to the
fact that in the course of an investigation by Inspector
Linnen at the Carlisle Indian School, Carlisle, hennsyl-
vania, the Inspector has discovered what appear to be
serious irregularities in the accounts of Superintendent
M. Friedman.

These accounts and vouchers were prepared by
Chief Clerk S. J. bori, who,in a confession to Inspector
Linnen, admits making false vouchers and accounts which
he said he did under the direction of Superintendent
Friedman. An amount approximating from fifteen hundred
to two thousand dollars iB involved in these accounts,
which moneys he says he turned over to Superintendent
Friedman. Likewise, Chief Clerk 3. J. bori confessed
to having taken from the office certain receipts and

evidence showing payments of moneys, which he removed

from the office and destroyed, as he says, under the

direction of Superintendent M. Friedman.

INITIALING COPY « FOR FILL



As soon as it became known to Superin-

tendent ;v. Friedman that Chief Clerk Kori had likely
confessed he swore out a warrant for the arrest of
Clerk Bari, charging him with embezzlement of several
hundred dollars and with destroying Government records.
Chief Clerk liori is out on bond and a hearing of said
case is to be had before Justice of the Peace Hughes
at Carlisle, Pennsylvania, Thursday morning, Haroh 26,
at ten of'olock, A. M.

The question of jurisdiction arises, arid
it ia believed that the Justioe or State courts have
no jurisdiction in the premises, the fact being that
these are Government accounts and Government moneys.
If it is later deemed advisable such matter can be
presented to your department for proper action. |
therefore have the honor to suggest that you have a
representative of your Department at said hearing to
move the dismissal of said case on the grounds of lack
of proper jurisdiction so that the Federal status of
the case will not be interfered with in any manner

by local or .Gtate courts.

The Supervisor in charge of the Carlisle

School, kr. 0. H. Lipps, will be pleased to render

-2



any a s s istamnce p os s ib le to y our re pore s emntative -

Trusting that you will give this matter
prompt attention and have a representative there so
that the issue will not be clouded, | >»ave the honor

to remain

Very cordially yours,

(Sod A A Joes
First Assistant Secretary.
3-Ah-a3
Honorable 3amuel J. Graham,
Assistant Attorney General,

Washington, G. C.



Inspection

*n MAR2'3,1914
caw

Ly der.r fcr. Graham: C
A\E°

Referring to the telephone conversation
between yourself and the Commissioner of Indian Affairs
this morning, | desire to invite your attention to the
faot that in the course of an investigation by Inspector
Unnon at the Carlisle Indian School, Carlisle, Pennsyl-
vania, tiie Inspector has discovered Thiat appear to be
serious irregularities in the accounts of Superintendent
M. Priedman*

'lhese accounts and vouchers were preparod by
Chid Cleric 3. J. Lori, who,in a confession to Inspector
Linnen, admits making false vouchers and accounts which
he said he did under the direction of Superintendent
Friedman. Aa amount approximating from fifteen hundred
to two thousand dollars is involved in these accounts,
which moneys he says he turned over to superintendent
Friedman* Likewise, Chief Clerk S. J. horl confeseed

to having taken from the office certain receipts and

evidence showing payments of moneys, which he removed

from the office and destroyed, aa he says, under the

direction of Superintendent M. Friedman.



As soon as It became known to Superin*

tendent It* Friedman that Chief Clerk Kori had likely
confessed he swore out a warrant for the arreet of
Clerk nori, charging him with embeszlement of several
hundred dollars and with doetroylng Government records.
Chief Clerk tiori ie out on bond and a hearing of said
case ia to be had before Justice of the Peace Hughes
at Carlisle, Pennsylvania, Thursday morning, F.arch 26,
at ten o'clock, A. 11

The question of jurisdiction arises, mid
it ia believed that the Justice or Btato courte have
no jurisdiction in the premises, the fact being that
these are Government accounts and Government moneys.
If it is later deeiaed advisable such matter can be
presented to your Department for proper action. |
therefore have the honor to suggest that you have a
representative of your Department at said hearing to
move the diamiseal of said case on the grounds of lack
of proper jurisdiction so that the Federal statue of
the case will not be Interfered with in any manner

by local or State courts.

The Supervisor in charge of the Carlisle

School, Sr. o. H. Lippe, will be pleased to render

-



any a s s istamnce p o s s ib le to y our re pore s emntative .

Trusting that you will give this matter
prompt attention and have a representative there so
that the issue will not be clouded, | have the honor

to remain

Very cordially yours,
First Assistant Secretary.
3-AR-23
Honorable <amuel J. Graham,
Assistant Attorney General,

Washington, 3. C.



THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR
WASHINGTON

March 12, 1914.

'LiAI0:

Hon. Cato Sells,
Commissioner of Indian Affairs,

Washington, D. C,

Dear Mr. Commissioner:
FILED BY C. P. F.

| transmit herewith Inspector Edward E. Linnen's
report on his recent investigation of the United States
Indian School at Carlisle, Pennsylvania. It is being
sent to you for your consideration.

The Secretary desires that, with the return of
this report and its related papers, you submit your recom-
mendations for his final disposition of the matters with
which they are concerned.

By direction of the Secretary:

Cordi

Tvuu-j 17~M1'A
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CLARENCE H. MACKAY. President.

EGRAM

ThePostal Telegraph-Cable Conrpany (Incorporaied)transimits and delivers this message sulgject to the tems and conditions printed onthe back of this Hark

g

DESIGN PATENT No. 40528

69w sy 55 Collect 80VT 413PM

Carlisle- Pa March 12-14

commissioner Indian A ffairs,. washn,L.a Y
N© petition has been circulated antsrye pupils a petition

tras being circulated among employees yesterday by Mr Liggett

and when | discovered this | advised him te keep away from the
shops and employees rooms and he has not returned all is quiet here
today

LipPs, Supervisor. in Charge.

Jk

iriis,



Viarah 12,
L1 Pa, Sup-rvieor iIn Charge,
Crliole, pa.
Inf r-rtion received th"™-t attorneyr and others are cir-
culating ;atitinnn aacng; ntudentfl #®nd taking et temo'-'.tsj fs~
c morning recent inve”tig tion. p ve no objection to &

at itemante or ietiti-ns being irade by studente if in your ~

presence ano with y-ur full knowledge; otherwise refuse tof =m
vl
permit itn ¢ ntinuance. | hve Just received x telegram
saying hit -.rnr we e secured under circuit cee that

Indio te coercion.



JOE T.ROBINSON. ARK AIRMAN.

JOHN WALTER SN 0.
LUKE LEA. TENN.'-——
THEODORE E. BURTON. OHIO.
JOHN O. WOTKS.CAL.

"UICmtefr laics ~ebenctieM

COMMITTEE ON

EXPENDITURES IN THE TREASURY DEPARTMENT

February 23, 1914
Hon. Cato Sells,

Commissioner of India; Affairs,
Washington, D. C.

Dear Mr. Sells.-

| hand you herewith oopy of testimony taken
at Carlisle, Pa., in the matter of the investigation by the
Joint Coramis’-ion to Investigate Indian Affairs. This record
IS conrolete except that it does not include certain authenti-
cated copies of Mr. Friedman's accounts which will be furnished
you by Inspector Linnen.

With personal regards

RBK. Chairman.
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S H. BURKE. S. DAK.

R. B. KEATING. ARK.. SECRETARY JOINT COMMISSION CjS
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February 9,1914.
\ \
Honorable Cato Sells,
Commissioner of Indian Affairs,
Washington, D. C.
Mr. Commissioner:
Sone time ago at the request of this Commiss”Ym Inspector
E. B. Linnen went to Carlisle, Pen:sylvania, to investigate
conditions prevailing in the Carlisle Indian School. A number
of complaints had been filed against the management and conduct of
\

the institution. On Friday last this Commission visited Carlisle,
made an inspection and took testimony of a large number of witnesses,
including several students and employees of the institution and
citizens of the town of Carlisle. W regret to say that the

affairs of this institution are in many respects unsatisfactory, and
call your attention to samre in detail, as follows:

1. The relationship between Superintendent Friedman and the

1pupils generally appears to be strained and unfriendly. The same is

true as to the feeling between the Superintendent and the majority g

of the employees. -
The testimony is conflicting as to the causes of this. Muxh

of the evidence tends to show that the Superintendent is unsympathetic

and overbearing in his conduct towards the pupils. There is also

testimony indicating that this attitude on the part of the pupils is
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encouraged by sore of the employees. On sore occasions lasge numbers
of pupils have publicly hooted and jeered at the Superintendent,
calling him "Mose" and "Old Jew", and using other expressions of
contempt. The Superintendent seems to have lost the respect of the
student body, and is unable to exercise a wholesome influence over
them.

2. The general condition in the Carlisle institute as to discipline
Is unsatisfactory; there are now many cases of drinking anong the
pupils and occasional instances of intoxication which are very
demoralizing in their influence. There are a large number of
saloons in the town of Carlisle. Sore of the pupils in the school have
so little Indian blood that it is difficult to distinguish them from
white persons, and it is claimed that these pupils are able to buy
whiskey and furbish it to the other pupils who are disposed to drink,
the evidence discloses that many of the pupils who drink to excess
have acquired the habit before entering the school. There is little
effort to police the grounds. Many of the pupils secretly and in
violation of the regulations go to town at night in citizens clothing.
Sometimes pupils appear in an intoxicated condition on the school
premises. It would seem imperative that safeguards be taken to
prevent the admission to the school of pupils who are in the habit
of drinking. In this connection it is proper to state, however, that

there has always been more or less drinking among the pupils. It
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appears to be mors conmon now than heretofore.

3. There are many instances of flagrant immoral conduct among the
pupils at Carlisle. Male and female pupils meet clandestinely, sometimes
in the girls'lquarters. A large number of female pupils have been
expelled on this account. In sore instances where expulsions were in
fact mede for this reason the records of the school appear to indicate
that the pupil foiled to return or was discharged for other reasons.
This is one of the perplexing and important problems connected with
the discipline in the school. The Superintendent thinks -there are not
more cases of this character than occur in any co-educational
institution. Ths Commission, however, regard this as erroneous.

4. Especial attention is called to the case of Ethel Williams
and Paul Jones, who were arrested on &warrant procured by the
disciplinarian of the Carlisle school, Mr. McKean, on a charge of
fornication. These two pupils were placed in the county jail.

The, entered pleas| of guilty and were sentenced to confinement for a
period of sixty days. The laws of the State of Pennsylvania do not
authorize imprisonment for this offense. The whole proceeding appears
to have been irregular and indeed in violation of law. Paul Jones was
confined for seventy days, and some information has reached the
Commission that daring the entire time he was not provided with a change
of clothing. Immediately upon the expiration of the jail sentence

both pupils were sent away from the school.
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5, Another instance which we regard as worthy of mention is the
case of a pupil who was arrested on an affidavit sworn out by Principal
Teacher Whitwal, and confined in the jail, we believe, for a period
of thirty days for "stealing" pies. The arrest&in both of these cases
were ordered by Superintendent Friedman.

6. ~special attention is also failed to the case of Julia Hardin,
a pupil about eighteen years old who has an excellent record. She had
agreed to go on an outing into the country, and rhen the matron
instructed her to go she declined to do so on the ground that she was not
provided with a ferunk. Some delay was had, and the matron again
instructed her to prepare to go on the outing. The young lady declined
and the matron attempted to coerce her. Bandmaster Stauffer, who is
not directly connected with the discipline in the school Informed
Superintendent Friednan that he thought the girl ought to be "spanked",
and the Superintendent acquiesced in the suggestion, although he stated
he was opposed to corporal punishment in any case. Mr. Stauffer, in
company with the matron and one other employee took Miss Hardin in a
room, closed the blinds, and urged her to go on the outing. She refused,
and Mr.Stauffer slapped her. According to his statement she dropped
domn on her knees, he spanked her, pushed her over on the floor and
whipped her with a stick. According to his statement he struck her ten
or twelve times.  According to her statement, he threw her on the floor
a number of times, struck her in the face with the stick, beating her

very severely, and striking her forty or fifty times. Principal Teacher



Hon. C. S. -5-
Khitwal was sent for and had little trouble in persuading her to
yield. She was confined in the lockup.

VJhile Miss Hardin was not without fault we think that Mr.

Stauffer's conduct must be severely condemned. It is in evidence that
the girl offered no physical resistance, but was merely stubborn, and
did not desire to go on the outing. When she went into the country
information preceded her which caused her employer to inform her that
she would be given no privileges and was under suspicion. It appears,
however, that she succeeded in endearing herself to the family.

7. The management ol'the school is inefficient. This appears to be
true as to every department. The Superintendent regards vocational
training as one of the strnng features of the work. It is totally unsat-
isfactory to us. Harness-making, instruction in telegraphy and in
agariculture have been discontinued, save with the school farms, which
are presumed to be run as/demonstratiom farm£. As to demonstrations on
the farrajj. the farmers in charge of the same testified that it is
wholly inefficient, and that the pupils are detailed to perform this
work as a kind of penalty for some misconduct. There is absolutely no
effort to stimulate a love of agriculture among the pupils, “hen one
becomes proficient in any of the trades he is frequently detailed to
other work, and thus loses all interest. This is true as to the
carpenter's whop, the tinner's shop, the paint shop, the shoe shop, and
the bakery, e instructors in charge of these various departments
say they have frequently complained to the Disciplinarian and to the
Superintendent that the pupils detailed to this work should be
permitted to complete their training, but in spite of their complaints, the

management of the school persists in a policy which makes it impossible
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for many of the pupils to successfully learn a trade.

The value of the system of outing has beenexaggerated. While in
many instances it has no doubt proven beneficial, we do not think that
pupils who are interested in trades should be detailed to farm work
or sent upon outinjjwfceire no opportunity is afforded them to continue
the study of their trade.

The school garden in inadequate. Nb reason appears why ample
supplies of garden products should not be produced for the use of the school.
The gardener takes this view of the matter, and it appears that the
supply of last year was inadequate. A3 an illustration of the absurd
policy prevailing as to the farm, it appears that the soil is depleted
and becoming less productive. These farms as now operated have practically
no demonstration value to the school.

8. It is the opinion of some who have given study to the subject,
including Doctor E. A Knobel, President of Dickinson College, that
class instruction in the school does not approximate a high standing.

9. The Commission, with the very able assistance of Inspector E. B.
Linnen™ Investigated and checked the athletic account. This is controlled
by the executive committee of the athletic association, which is a
corporation. The executive committee appears to be the Superintendent
of the school, the athletic director, Mr. Warner, and the treasurer of
the athletic association, Lr. “illiam Miller. The accounts appear to be
very accurately kept, but the disbursement and expenditures are open to

very grave criticism.
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10. It appears that the Superintendent has falsified his
accounts in this: While actually travelling to and from the city of
Washington on mileage books purchased from the athletic fund and
furnished him free of cost, he has, for the sare trips, charged his
transportation expenses to the government in his accounts as
Superintendent and disbursing agent. Thia appears from the records of
the treasurer of the athletic association and the records in the office
of the auditor for the Cumberland Valley Tailroad Company and the
Pennsylvania Railroad.

11. The matron, Miss Ridenour, in charge of the large girl
pupils is earnest in her work, and appears to be prompted by good
motives. She, however, inspired the beating of Miss Hardin by
Bandmaster Stauffer, and was present assisting in the same. She is
harsh and unkindly in her demeanor toward the pupils, and as a result
of this the relationship between the pupils and the said matron is
strained and unfriendly to such an extent that it is doubtful whether
her continence in the service there will be for the good of the
institution’.

Upon a consideration of the whole case, the Joint Commission
recommends that Superintendent Priedman ind Bandmaster Stauffer be
suspended and tried. We further recommend due consideration be

given to the advisability of reprimanding Miss Ridenour a

transferring her. These recommendations are concurred in
members of the Commission who were present. Very truly,



SUMMARY .

It is herein shown by the testimony of the farmers,
gardeners, dairymen, carpenters, mason, carriagemaker, shoe-
maker, tailor, tinner, blacksmith, painter, engineer, seam-
stress, disciplinarian, assistant disciplinarian, former
disciplinarian, principal of the school, various teachers;
by fourteen boys and girls representing the student body;
by the outing matron, girls' field agent, certain clerks,
former employes of said school, and others, that Superin-
tendent Moses Friedman has not the best interests of the
Government at heart or the welfare of the student body of
said Carlisle Indian School; that he has been neglectful of
his duties in properly supervising and looking after the
various industrial departments of said school, that he has
neglected the best interests of the student boys in not hav-
ing them taught agriculture, gardening, farming, dairying,
poultry raising, horticulture, etc.; that he has been neglect
ful oj™-his duty in not having boys properly selected and de-
tailed to the various shops and industries, such as the tailo
shop, paint shop, carpenter shop, blacksmith shop, carriage-
maker shop, shoemaker shop, and tin shop, for a sufficient
length of time to enable them to learn the trades; that he

took no personal interest in such matters, but allowed these



details to be made haphazard by the disciplinarian without
any regard whatever to the qualifications of the boys or
their desire to learn certain trades permitted them
to be shifted from one shop to another and to the farms,
kitchen, and on outing, to the detriment of and against
the best interests of the future welfare of these boys.

It is also herein shown that the students d
not have sufficient to eat; that there was generally a
lack of bread on the tables prior to ny coning to Carlisle;
that there was an insufficient number of knives, spoons,
cups, and table ware, all of which was caused by the neg-
lect of Superintendent Friedman.

It is also shown that the Government rations al-
lowed could and should have been properly supplemented by
vegetables which could and should have been raised at the
school and which would have provided education and employ-
ment for the pupils, as well, that there are no vegetables,
ro milk, eggs, pork, or other articles of food being served
to supplement said ration; that butter is furnished only
once a week; an insufficient quantity of syrup twice a week,
and a little canned fruit occasionally; that the pork raised
at said school, and the lard, has been sold and the moneys

placed in Class Four Fund and used for purposes other than

for the tables of the pupils.



It is also shown that the mattresses on the major-
ity of the beds in the dormitories were unfit for use, hard,
packed down and matted from years of use, and should have

*okk a V7 'r/zc* “/~n
been condemned and replaced by new mattresses;”~that the ge
eral conditions in the dormitories were not good.

It is shown that on ny arrival the discipline of
said school vas very bad, indeed; that there was almost open
rebellion among the student body against the Superintendent
of said school which had been brought about by lack of prop-
er cooperation with employees; lack of sympathy and unjust
treatment of certain members of the student body; unjust
treatment of certain employees; lack of individual interest
in the pupils or their welfare; lack of proper details to
the various industries; lack of proper night watchmen; lack
cf any human side or fatherly interest in the "elfare of this
student body.

It is further shown that football and athletics
were allowed to predominate and obtain first place at said
school, and that the academic, educational, industrial, ag-
ricultural training, etc., of the student body were, in con-
sequence, allowed tc suffer and were™ef—secondary considera-
tion.

It is shown by reference to "Exhibit I" that Super-

intendent Friedman permitted the athletic funds of said school
A



to be improperly used.

It is shown that professionalism -vas employed in
the athletics of said school and the football players were
brought back to said school and enrolled as members of the
student body, for the express purpose of playing football
and taking part in athletics.

It is shown that the football players of said
school received payments in cash, or indirectly, in some
other manner.

It is shown that Superintendent Friedman allowed.
students of said school to-.he put in the County Jail, Cum
berland County, Pennsylvania, and treated unjustly in vio-
lation of the law

It is shoVn that Superintendent Moses Friedman
permitted corporal punishment at said school and encouraged
same; as an example, the whipping of Julia Hardin by Band-
master Stauffer.

It is shown by the testimony of former printer
E.K. Miller that liquor has been served at the Carlisle In-
dian School in the home of Superintendent Friedman, and
that beer has been delivered on the grounds at the homes of
(>o0ach Earner, bandmaster Stauffer, and (“Lerk V.cr/1.

It is shown that favoritism was shown toward the

football players and certain employees, and that certain



football players who were intoxicated and brought liguor
on the grounds were not disciplined, while others have

been severely disciplined forA offenses, viz., the
putting of the boys in the county jail for stealing pies.

It is shown that the school records have been
falsified and that prior to the date of the last investi-
gation by Supervisor Charles F. Pierce, February 20, 1911,
pupils had been carried on said rolls for a period of up-
wards of 22,000 days, when they were not in attendance ,
some of whom had been absent foT”as long as five years.

In this connection, | desire to refer to testimony of the
Joint Commission, pages 22C-231, inclusive.

It is show that former students ar.d graduates
of the Carlisle Indian School who sought employment within
the arbitrarily fixed lines of the Carlisle Outing System,
were improperly treated by Superintender.t Friedman and
made to lose their jobs.

It is shown that Superintendent Moses Friedman
has lost the respect, confidence, and good will of practi-

cally the entire student body, as veil as™the majority of

the employees at said Carlisle Indian School, and that he
iIs unsympathetic and overbearing in his conduct toward the

. . u=
pupils and certain of the employees; thatABE™ management

of the school is inefficient in practically every department.
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It is shewn that the Outing System has been exag-
gerated and abused; thfl™*pupils have been forced on outings A
at a nominal wage, against their best interests.

It is shown that there are a large number of pu-
pils enrolled at said school when they have public school
facilities at home, and who were attending public schools
prior to coming to Carlisle, and it is nmy best judgment that
these schools should accommodate Indian pupils who have not
the advantages of public schtols at their homes.

It is shown that the records have been falsified
with relation to pupils who have been sent hore or expelled.

It is shown that Superintendent Hoses Friedman
has presented false accounts to the Government, in that he~P-AHi
collected railway fares for certain trips which are embraced

'nf-nCzZzif A J

in his Government vouchers, 7,her. he used mlleage”~that res /
bought and paid for out of the athletic funds of the Carlisle
association.

In view of the foregoing, | have the honor to

recommend that Superintendent Hoses Friedman be dismissed

permanently from the Government service.
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December 1, 1913.
Honorable Gato Sells, !\%—
4~
Commissioner of Indian Affairs, r £ g
Washington, D. C.
Dear Mr. Commissioner:
please furnish/at your earliest convenience/to the
11

Joint Commission to Investigate Indian Affairs”™all information available ra
concerning the administration of the present superintendent of the
Carlisle School, particularly with reference to the following specific
points:

1. The number of boys jailed for drunkenness, and general
conditions at said school with reference to intoxication.

2. Itemized statement of receipts and expenditures on account of
the athletic fund.

3. The general discipline in said school.

4. The number of girls dismissed from the school for immoral
conduct, and the general moral conditions prevailing at the school.

5. The full record of the case of an Indian boy and girl confined
in the county’\lgail, their names unknown to me, and upon vhat authority
and for what offense confined.

Permit e to suggest that if the facts concerning said matters

are not in the possession of the Department that a reliable

inspector be assigned to the duty at once, charged with the
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investigation of all these matters, and that his reports be

furnished to the Commission when made. | hope you will pardon the

suggestion that Inspector Linnen be assigned to this work. My reason

for making the suggestion is that Ur. Linnen, as you know, rendered

some service in connection jsith the Commission, and his services

have been highly satisfactory.



